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Foreword from the chair  

Welcome to our annual report, the first since NHS Devon Integrated Care Board came into 

being on 1 July 2022. 

It is well understood that the past nine months have been challenging for the NHS – COVID-19 

is still with us, waiting times are long, we struggle to recruit enough staff in many areas, and we 

see frontline colleagues at risk of burnout after three years of intense and unrelenting pressure. 

Demand is on the rise and budgets are undeniably tight.  

We are tackling these challenges. Our Nightingale Hospital in Exeter, for example, has been 

key in helping people get the treatment they have been waiting for such as knee and hip 

operations and cataract surgery. We can see real progress in offering people high quality, safe 

care more quickly. We must still acknowledge that waiting times remain a serious issue for us 

after the worst of the COVID pandemic.  

Here, however, I would like to take a moment to set out why I believe we have cause for 

optimism. We can, in my view, already see that the new ways of collaborative working – across 

health, social care, local authorities and the voluntary and community sectors – have the 

potential to make a real difference to people in Devon.  

In joining forces with these partners under the Integrated Care System for Devon, we have set 

common goals. We want to make people’s health better, of course.  But we are also committed 

to giving people a good experience of using services, to making it easier for everyone to access 

those services and receive kind, high quality care when they do. We also want to make the 

system fairer, to ensure that people in Devon aren’t disadvantaged because they may have a 

learning disability, or no transport, or are from an ethnic minority.         

This is where Devon’s excellent local voluntary and community groups come in.  Within the new 

partnership, we are already seeing the extraordinary value they add. Our new interpersonal 

trauma response service, for example, is offering dedicated support for adults who have been 

affected by domestic abuse, sexual abuse or sexual violence – and every GP in Devon will be 

able to access it for their patients.  We know that without the right support, people suffering this 

abuse can be left with a deep and lasting impact on their mental or physical health. The service 

offered by FearLess can step in to help.  

While we look to the future with this kind of collaboration, the reorganisation of the NHS from 

Clinical Commissioning Groups – or CCGs - into the new Integrated Care Boards does not 

mean that the excellent work of GPs in leading services over many years will be lost. In North 

Devon, for example, the lead GP for the CCG locality was a driving force in creating One 

Northern Devon, and this collaboration between a wide range of equal partners is still going 

from strength to strength, helping people in the community get the support they need to lead 

the fullest lives they can. Its flagship approach, The High Flow Programme, has transformed 

the way services support people with multiple or complex needs, focusing on people with the 

most complex needs who are high users of emergency services and stepping in with holistic 

and individually tailored approaches to care. These successes continue.   
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Nor has the “local is best” approach been lost in our new system. GPs continue to make an all-

important contribution to the Local Care Partnerships in East, West, North, South Devon and 

Plymouth, reflecting the differing profiles and needs of Devon’s communities.  

I congratulate Devon’s GPs on their huge success in managing to provide their patients with 

ever-growing numbers of appointments, including on the same day and with the majority once 

again being face-to-face.  Deservedly, they have recently been recognised as being among the 

best in the country, showing real commitment to their patients. We are lucky to have them.   

I would like to thank every member of our workforce across Devon for their commitment to 

providing the best possible care for the people and communities who rely on our services.  

 

 

 
 

 

 

Dr Sarah Wollaston 

Chair, NHS Devon Integrated Care Board  
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Performance report 
The purpose of this performance report is to set out the activities of NHS Devon Integrated 
Care Board and to demonstrate how effective it has been in meeting both national standards 
and its local objectives.  

Our predecessor organisation, NHS Devon Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG), ceased to 
exist as a statutory body on 30 June 2022, when all CCGs were abolished. Health services are 
now commissioned by the Devon Integrated Care Board, the organisational form and functions 
of which are set out below. This report covers the period from 1 July 2022 to 31 March 2023.  
 

Performance Overview 

One Devon  

Through One Devon (the name for our Integrated Care System), NHS Devon Integrated Care 
Board (known as NHS Devon) aims to effect the changes to health and care set out in the NHS 
Long Term Plan. This is intended to meet the growing challenges of providing community and 
hospital care and social care when demand is dramatically increasing. Through the Devon Plan 
– made up of our Integrated Care Strategy and our Five-Year Joint Forward Plan – we will 
show how we will meet the needs of the local population.  
 
The vision for One Devon is: Equal chances for everyone in Devon to lead long, happy and 
healthy lives 
 
With partners, six strategic objectives – or ambitions - were set for One Devon:  
 

➢ Collaborate across the system to address quality (safety, effectiveness, experience) and 
productivity. 

➢ Systematic delivery of integrated – or joined up – care across Devon. 
➢ A citizen-led approach to health and care. We will adopt a new approach to reduce 

differences in care across the county and will work with communities to identify priorities 
and tackle the root causes of problems 

➢ Working together with children, young people and their families. We want all children 
and young people in Devon to have the best start in life, grow up in loving and 
supportive families, and be happy, healthy and safe 

➢ Invest in a digital Devon: people will only tell their story once, first contact will be digital, 
and more advice and help will be available online. We want to make the most of 
advances in digital technology to help people stay well, prevent ill-health, and provide 
care 

➢ Work together to tackle the physical health inequalities for people with mental illness, 
learning disabilities and/or autism 

One Devon is a collaboration of the NHS and local councils, as well as a wide range of other 
organisations like the voluntary sector, who are working together to improve the lives of people 
in Devon. 
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Integrated Care Strategy 

Partners in One Devon published the system’s Integrated Care Strategy in February 2023, 
setting out their approach to health and care for the next five years. Given the very tight 
timescales for developing the strategy, this built on views that had already been sought from 
communities and those who use services. 
 
As part of the preparation, an online Change Leaders event was held in October 2022 attended 
by more than 100 leaders and representatives from a range of sectors, including the NHS; local 
authorities; hospices; voluntary, community and social enterprise; public health and other local 
partnerships.  The next step has been for the NHS and Local Authorities to agree a Five-Year 
Joint Forward Plan that sets out how the strategy will be delivered.  
  

Sustainable services across Devon and Cornwall 

Hospital trust boards in Devon and Cornwall endorsed a Peninsula Acute Sustainability 
Programme designed to ensure that all five acute hospitals across the two counties co-operate 
to make sure their clinical, workforce, and financial sustainability and to improve services.  
 
Medical directors from the hospitals were asked to lead a programme to manage increasing 
demand, tackle unacceptably long waiting times and growing pressures on unscheduled and 
emergency care.  
  
The availability of appropriately skilled staff has been a major limiting factor on the ability to 
provide health and social care in the most appropriate place according to people’s need. 
 
Digital progress 

Recent data show that Devon’s GP practices have seen the biggest improvement nationwide in 
access for patients since the start of the COVID-19 pandemic.  

Data from NHS Digital shows that in January 2023 there were more than 754,000 appointments 
in general practice in Devon – the highest proportion of appointments per 1,000 people in the 
country. This means there are now 8% more appointments available locally than before the 
pandemic started. 

The number of face-to-face appointments has also risen dramatically. More than 65% of 
appointments in general practice in Devon are now face-to-face.  

World-first genetic testing in Exeter 

A world-first national genetic testing service was developed by the Royal Devon University 
Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust in collaboration with world-leading genomics research 
groups at the University of Exeter, alongside clinicians and academics worldwide. 
  
The service, launched during the year, can rapidly process DNA samples of babies and 
children who become seriously ill in hospital or who are born with a rare disease. Results can 
be given to medical teams across the country within days – meaning they can potentially start 
lifesaving treatment plans for more than 6,000 genetic diseases. 
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Action for children with special educational needs 

Partners across the Devon County Council area drew up a declaration of action in response to 
a critical report from Ofsted and the Care Quality Commission concerning services for children 
with special educational needs.  The declaration describes what will be done to improve 
services and follows a detailed survey of the views of parents, carers, children and young 
people using them. 
 
The Torbay local area partnership have been working together to deliver the Written Statement 
of Action Improvement Plan.  A key focus is ensuring that SEND is “everyone’s business”.  A 
new Local Inclusion Plan has been developed and there are early signs of improvement with 
exclusions and suspensions. New Ways of Working launched to improve the culture of 
provision and care. A quality improvement approach has been taken to Education Health and 
Care planning and 7 Joint commissioning projects kick started with a re-formed group to 
monitor progress and pace. 
 
The partnership in Plymouth have maintained a focus on SEND improvement in preparation for 
inspection under the new framework in 2023. 
 
Joint working for mental health 

A new alliance of organisations from the voluntary, community and social enterprise sector was 
formed to offer more support locally to people struggling with mental illness. The Devon Mental 
Health Alliance’s Recovery Practitioners focus on working closely with people living with a wide 
range of needs who traditionally may have fallen through gaps between services and 
organisations providing help. 

The new role is a key element of Devon’s Community Mental Health Framework (CMHF), which 
sees the statutory and voluntary and community sectors working in partnership to transform 
services and enable more people to get the right care at the right time, where they live. 

Adult and Older Adult Mental Health in-patient care 

A national and local priority for people needing a Mental Health In-patient bed has been to 
reduce the numbers of people and time spent out-of-area for that provision.  Outcomes for 
people with mental health conditions, and their transitions from in-patient to community care, 
are significantly helped when local in-patient care can be used.  Despite Devon having fewer 
mental health inpatient beds for its population than most other parts of the country, Devon has 
significantly reduced its reliance on “Inappropriate Out of Area Placements”. 
 

In the 24 months to December 2022, Devon reduced its reliance on Inappropriate Out of Area 
bed days by 2,645 days: contributing significantly to the South West Region’s total reduction of 
3,875 bed days.  This is substantially ahead of the pace of reduction in England and is 
achieved through the concerted efforts of providers, the opening of a new psychiatric ward in 
Torbay and key investments in bed-based capacity 
 

Nightingale Hospital tackling waiting times 

The Nightingale Hospital in Exeter, originally a COVID-19 hospital, became one of eight such 
centres to be accredited nationally as meeting top clinical and operational standards in its 
planned orthopaedic operations and procedures. After the first wave of the pandemic, the 

https://devonccg.newsweaver.com/1qsl6lg64k/1axs6kkrbri88l1xwparug/external?a=6&p=10533561&t=1341122
https://devonccg.newsweaver.com/1qsl6lg64k/1axs6kkrbri88l1xwparug/external?a=6&p=10533561&t=1341122
https://devonccg.newsweaver.com/1qsl6lg64k/122xd3to0gx88l1xwparug/external?a=6&p=10533561&t=1341122
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Nightingale Hospital was transformed into a state-of-the-art facility for a range of orthopaedic, 
ophthalmology, diagnostic, and rheumatology services, helping reduce waiting times. 

COVID-19 pandemic 

The impact of COVID-19 is still being felt across Devon, in major part in terms of the longer 
waiting times for planned procedures and operations that were postponed at the height of the 
pandemic but also because many people are still requiring hospital admission.  
 
NHS Devon continued to coordinate the local response to COVID-19 to ensure the best 
possible care for people across Devon. This included ensuring the population was up to date 
with its vaccinations before the winter, and that those living in care homes received support 
where needed. This work included targeted programmes to encourage greater take-up of the 
vaccine among people at higher risk.  
 
With its partners, NHS Devon has paid particular attention to reducing waiting times for those 
whose care and treatment was delayed. This included establishing dedicated theatre time for 
orthopaedic and eye surgery, including at the former Nightingale Hospital (see above) so that 
planned treatment was not affected by emergencies or surges in demand for care. Addressing 
very long waiting times is of the highest priority for NHS Devon and partners.  
 
Care Hotel for Plymouth 

Health and care partners in Plymouth worked together to set up a 40-bed ‘Care Hotel’ to help 
relieve pressure at the city’s Derriford Hospital. It was used to help discharge people who did 
not need to be in the hospital but did need additional support. Those staying at the hotel, under 
the care of a registered care agency, were supported to regain their independence, with some 
returning home without the need for ongoing social care. Care hotels have been used by the 
NHS in Devon since 2020 and feedback has overall been very positive.  

Equalities 

NHS Devon has continued to build on the work of the CCG in addressing health inequalities. In 
particular, it implemented a range of measures to improve experience among ethnically diverse 
communities. Representation matters and it was important to us that our board and community 
engagement and involvement reflects the diversity of our communities and staff. Confidence in 
the COVID-19 vaccination was significantly improved through an outreach programme, which 
used trusted community representatives as vaccine ambassadors, and resulted in more than 
50,000 from diverse communities (including LGBTQ+, migrant workers, gypsy Roma and 
traveller communities and ethnically diverse groups), receiving their COVID vaccination. This 
work was subsequently recognised at national level with the Health Equalities award at the 
NHS Parliamentary Awards.   
 
Research 

During the last six months NHS Devon have formed a partnership with research and innovation 
partners across the South West peninsula (Somerset, Devon and Cornwall and the Isles of 
Scilly (CIOS) to consider how, as an ICB, we can increase the impact of research and 
innovation. 
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Working with NHS CIOS and NHS Somerset, and supported by the Academic Health Science 
Network for the South West peninsula, we have drawn on the experience of other more mature 
research and innovation ecosystems to understand how to strengthen the conditions for 
research and innovation.  
 
This work has resulted in the development of an ambitious and pioneering partnership for 
health and care research and innovation in the South West peninsula. The purpose of the 
partnership is to work in collaboration with NHS CIOS and NHS Somerset to bring together the 
collective capability of the peninsula’s two major universities, the NIHR Clinical Research 
Network, the NIHR Applied Research Collaborative and the Academic Health Science Network 
to increase the impact of research and innovation.  
 
We are working together as a partnership to develop a shared five-year Peninsula Research 
and Innovation Strategy (PRIS) focused on our shared population health and system priorities. 
We are confident this approach – working in partnership at the level of the peninsula – will 
enable us to integrate the latest evidence, innovation and improvements into our transformation 
plans. We also believe that working in this way across the peninsular will potentially increase 
the likelihood that we can draw in greater additional investment and make faster progress than 
might be possible otherwise. 
 

Performance summary 

A summary from the accountable officer  

 

NHS Oversight Framework 

The NHS Oversight Framework describes NHS England’s approach to its oversight of NHS 
organisations for 2022/23, and its monitoring of their performance. It aligns to the areas set out 
in the 2022/23 priorities and operational planning guidance and the legislative changes made 
by the Health and Care Act 2022, including the formal establishment of Integrated Care Boards 
and the merging of NHS Improvement (itself created from a previous merger of Monitor and the 
NHS Trust Development Authority) into NHS England (NHSE). 
 

NHS Devon is currently in segment 4 of the Oversight Framework and in receipt of mandated 
support from NHSE as set out in the national Recovery Support Programme (RSP). The criteria 
to move from segment 4 to segment 3 have been agreed and require robust recovery and 
improvement plan delivery with clear oversight via the NHS Devon governance framework set 
out later in this report.  

The scope of the NHS Oversight Framework covers six domains with the current Devon ICB 
categorisation based upon three key areas for improvement: 
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           OF Domains                           Devon Improvement Areas (2022-23) 

 

The NHS Oversight Framework draws together in one place NHS Constitution and other core 
performance and finance metrics, outcome goals and transformational challenges, to capture 
the multi-faceted role of ICSs. The national framework includes an oversight process which 
follows an ongoing cycle of monitoring performance against the six OF Domains with NHS 
Devon having a key role alongside NHS England in assessing local healthcare providers. 

At the last formal review, the Oversight Framework segmentation due to financial and 
performance challenges for the One Devon System was agreed as follows: 

Organisation OF segment 

NHS Devon  4 

University Hospitals Plymouth NHS Trust 4 

Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust 4 

Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation Trust 4 

Devon Partnership NHS Trust 2 

1 

Oversight Framework metrics are updated and released on a monthly basis, with the Oversight 
Framework published through a range of channels including NHS Futures. 

The latest information available for 2022/23 is shown below. The quartiles indicate where the 
organisation benchmarks compared to all others and is divided into three parts 

• Lowest performing quartile (poorest performance) 

• Interquartile range (near average performance) 

• Highest performance quartile (best performance) 

Data was published for the indicators relevant to the Devon ICS area, is as follows: 

 
1 Livewell SouthWest although do not appear in the segment chart are a provider within the Devon system.  

• Financial performance including 
addressing the long-term deficit 

• Joint ownership and delivery of a 
coherent strategy that secures 
sustainable clinical services and 
improved performance 

• Whole-system approach and 
collaboration across Devon 
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In making the assessment of both the NHS Devon and providers, it is important to note that 
One Devon is currently underperforming against constitutional performance standards in: 

• Urgent and emergency care (UEC) 

• Referral to treatment times (RTT) 

• Cancer 

• Diagnostics 

More detail is provided on these in the Performance Analysis section below.  

Key issues and risks to our performance 

Staff shortages and industrial action by nursing, paramedical and medical staff, including junior 

doctors, has posed a risk to performance. Across the Devon and Cornwall peninsula, there 

remain shortages of clinical staff in many disciplines and specialties. The NHS in Devon is 

addressing this through peninsula-wide plans for sustainable services. It also has robust plans 

in place to ensure the safety of patients.  

NHS Devon is to take on responsibility in the coming year for commissioning dental services. 

These have been under prolonged pressure and, with no extra funding available, will need 

intense performance management which will be a focus along with development going forward. 

NHS Devon also takes on responsibility for pharmacy and optical services.  

 

NHS Devon and its activities 

NHS Devon is responsible for the majority of the county’s NHS budget and develops plans to 
improve people’s health, deliver high quality care and better value for money.  

It is led by a diverse board, which includes representatives from local councils, public health, 
primary care (GP and other services) acute hospitals, mental health, learning disability and 
neurodiversity and the VCSE. It was and remains important to the board that we include 
individuals with lived experience of navigating complex services including for mental health and 
for young people, and that our board reflects the diversity of our wider community and 
workforce.  

 

NHS 

Devon
RDU TSD UHP DPT Livewell

Highest 

performing 

quartile

13 11 6 11 5 0

Interquartile 

range
32 18 24 20 9 12

Lowest 

performing 

quartile

18 8 7 7 4 0
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Devon is the fourth largest county in England, with a growing but ageing population. It includes 
the cities of Plymouth and Exeter. While prosperous in parts, it faces a range of challenges in 
terms of education, job opportunities, housing and isolation, and an influx of population during 
the summer season. The seaside town of Salcombe, for example, has a population that 
declines tenfold from summer to winter, and sees the highest cost of housing of any coastal 
town in the country. 

Commissioning services for local people  

With a yearly budget of £2.3 billion, we plan and buy hospital and community NHS services, 

including: 

➢ Most planned hospital care 

➢ Rehabilitative care  

➢ Urgent and emergency care (including out of hours) 

➢ GP services 

➢ Most community health services such as community nursing and physiotherapy  

➢ Maternity services  

➢ Services for children’s and young people’s health 

➢ Mental health and learning disability services  

➢ Continuing healthcare for people with ongoing health needs such as nursing care  

In planning and developing these services, we involve local patients, carers and the public. We 

work closely with organisations such as Healthwatch Devon, Plymouth and Torbay to help us 

better understand local need.  

The health and care organisations included in One Devon are: 

➢ Royal Devon University Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust 

➢ University Hospitals Plymouth NHS Trust 

➢ Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation Trust 

➢ South Western Ambulance Services NHS Foundation Trust 

➢ Livewell Southwest 

➢ Devon Partnership NHS Trust 

➢ NHS Devon Integrated Care Board 

➢ All GP practices in Devon, Plymouth and Torbay 

➢ Devon County Council 

➢ Torbay Council 

➢ Plymouth City Council 

➢ Devon, Plymouth and Torbay Health and Wellbeing Boards 

➢ Voluntary and community sector partners 

 

To ensure we take into account the varied needs of our population, we have five Local Care 

Partnerships covering: 

➢ Eastern Devon 

➢ Northern Devon 

➢ Plymouth 

➢ South Devon 

➢ Western Devon 
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We have a  Five Year Integrated Care Strategy setting out our goals and targets. A five-year 

Joint Forward Plan is being developed and is expected to be published at the end of June 

2023.   

Financial review 

NHS Devon was formed three months into the financial year on 1 July 2022. The period of this 
financial review covers the 9 months to 31 March 2023.  

The financial framework put in place by NHS England to enable NHS Devon to take the 
appropriate financial decisions for their population provided a fixed funding envelope, including 
primary medical care funding and funding for ongoing COVID related costs. 

In line with the requirements of NHS England, NHS Devon produced a £0.14m surplus for the 
period covering 1 July 2022 to 31 March 2023. 
 
NHS Devon’s (ICB) reported position against its revenue resource limit is set out below:  
 

Financial Summary  

Period ended 

31 March 2023  

£ million  

Revenue resource limit  1,996.99 

Total net operating cost for the financial period  1,996.85 

 (Overspend) / Underspend  0.14  

 

NHS Devon had purchased capital items totalling £0.53m, meeting its capital resource limit.  
  
NHS Devon also managed to meet the following other financial duties:  
 

• Running costs contained within the agreed allocation: for the ICB this was achieved with 

reported expenditure of £19.69m. 

• Managing cash resources received from NHS England against a mandated threshold, 
the annual cash drawdown requirement. 

• Compliance with the Better Payment Practice Code 

 
How the ICB funds were spent in the period ended 31 March 2023 

NHS Devon was responsible to the public in relation to how it allocated and spent taxpayers’ 
money in each financial year.  
  
For the period ended 31 March 2023 the NHS Devon spend was allocated in the following 
proportions, which largely reflects historical levels of expenditure, trends in current demand. 
The table below shows the nine-month spend by service type which includes contract and non-
contractual expenditure with NHS providers, independent providers, local authorities and the 
voluntary sector, and shows the running costs for NHS Devon:   
 

    

https://devonccg.newsweaver.com/1qsl6lg64k/4fbexiqxvij88l1xwparug/external?a=6&p=10533555&t=1341122
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Going concern  

The NHS Devon Board has prepared these financial statements on a going concern basis, in 
other words the entity will continue to operate for the foreseeable future. Public sector bodies 
are assumed to be going concerns where the continuation of the provision of a service in the 
future is anticipated, as evidenced by inclusion of financial provision for that service in 
published documents. 
 
Name of external auditor, plus costs  

NHS Devon used the services of KPMG LLP as its external auditor and paid £240,000 
(£200,000 excluding VAT) for the nine-month period ended 31st March 2023. Included in the 
accounts is an additional £86,000 (£71,667 excluding VAT) payment to KPMG LLP, previously 
unaccounted for. This was for the audit of the legacy organisation’s (Devon Clinical 
Commissioning Group) final three month set of accounts, to the period ended 30 June 2022.  
 
Basis of accounting  

The financial statements contained within this report have been prepared in accordance with 
the direction given by NHS England under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) 
and in a format instructed by the Department of Health with the approval of HM Treasury.  
 
The accounts present our results for, and financial position to, the period ended 31 March 
2023. They have been prepared under International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 
using the accounting policies shown in the notes to the accounts, in accordance with the 
2022/23 Group Accounting Manual (GAM) issued by the Department of Health and Social 
Care. They comprise a Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Comprehensive Net 
Expenditure, a Statement of Cash Flows, and a Statement of Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity, all 
with related notes.  
 
Losses and Special Payments  

Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it 
agreed funds for the health service or passed legislation. By their nature they are items that 
ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject to special control procedures compared 
with the generality of payments, and special notation in the accounts to draw them to the 
attention of Parliament. They are divided into different categories including cash losses, bad 
debts, extracontractual payments and compensation.  
 

Service Type £'m %

Acute  1,009.63 51%

Primary Care     359.30 18%

Continuing Care     114.09 6%

Community Health Services     256.98 13%

Mental Health     210.71 11%

Other       26.44 1%

Corporate       19.69 1%

Total 1,996.85 100%
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For the period ended 31 March 2023 there have been four payments totalling £26,444.77 for 
the period to date, three of which are ex-gratia payments adding up to £16,847.04 and a debt 
write-off for £9,597.73. 
 
2023/24 financial outlook  

NHS England confirmed that NHS Devon and NHS primary and secondary care providers are 
expected to work together, in collaboration with other One Devon system partners, to plan and 
ensure that spend does not exceed the resources available. The 2023/24 plans are based on 
the need to recover our core services and productivity, making progress towards delivering the 
key ambitions in the NHS Long Term Plan. 

NHS Devon received recurrent base growth funding in 2023/24 of 4.77% which equates to 
£100.1m. For the running costs of NHS Devon there is no growth in funding for 2023/24 with an 
expectation of considerable savings required in coming years in excess of 30%. 

Despite the additional funding received the efficiency requirement is going to make 2023/24 
very challenging. There is a continued need to reduce the waiting times, maximising recovery 
opportunities, driving system efficiency and reinvesting in less expensive, innovative and more 
effective integrated care models.  
 
Devon ICB has responsibility for delivering a balanced financial position across Devon. Whilst 
the ICB has submitted a surplus plan (£48.6m) for 23/24 the overall Devon system has 
submitted a deficit plan of £42.3m. The deficit is driven by the 3 acute provider organisations in 
Devon all of whom are in the highest level of national escalation for both finance and 
performance (System Oversight Framework level 4 (SOF4)). Due to the financial and 
performance position across Devon, the ICB having lead responsibility for the system is also in 
SOF4. 
 
The Devon system has developed a system recovery plan that will improve both finance and 
performance across the acute provider organisations. Delivery of this plan will ensure that the 
system can exit SOF4 by Quarter 1 of 2024/25. 
 
Managing our financial risks  

The 2023/24 NHS Devon plan carries a level of risk, some of which has been contained with 
partner organisations, requiring close collaborative working across Devon.  

The plan is dependent on the on-going evaluation and mitigation of a number of broad financial 
risks through 2023/24: 

• The arrangements for returning to business-as-usual post COVID, recovering our core 
services and productivity, presents a challenge to Devon both from an operational and 
financial management perspective. We must ensure Devon receives adequate 
resources to cover the additional resource commitments for the NHS made by the 
Government, for example the Hospital Discharge Fund.  

• Funding provider contracts and commitments into 2023/24 and managing in-year 
financial risk. This will be particularly challenging given the level of system savings 
required. 

• Managing within the running costs allowance which has been capped for a number of 
years and will be considerably reduced going forward. This will inevitably result in a risk 
of staffing pressures due to workforce requirements of the NHS Devon and system 
working. 
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NHS Devon must also play an active role in the mitigation of risk to the overall system position, 

supporting providers in the delivery of their challenging cost reduction plans through delivering 

a level of demand management which will support a step change and support a 

transformational approach to the capacity within the provider sector.  

NHS Devon will achieve its objectives only through effective collaboration with its partners. It 

continues to work closely with local authorities, primary care services and local hospitals to 

improve the outcomes and experience of patients. The organisation seeks the involvement of 

service-users and members of the public to enhance its understanding of the health needs and 

experience of the local population.  

In addition to those outlined above, there are other risks because of the environment NHS 

Devon operates in, with NHS funding principally voted by Parliament. As such, it is reliant on 

the elected government for its income. 

It is not possible for NHS Devon to mitigate all the risks it faces. Risk is managed within the 

organisation using a risk register. Risks are scored against the likelihood of occurrence, the 

potential impact, and the strength of the risk controls in place. Responsibility for managing each 

risk is assigned to an appropriate individual. The risk register is reviewed periodically by the 

Audit and Risk Committee, the Senior Leadership Team and the Board to ensure that 

appropriate controls are in place. 

Performance analysis  

The NHS Constitution sets out key targets for NHS organisations. From 2020-23, many 

services were affected by the COVID-19 pandemic, resulting in large increases in waiting lists 

and waiting times in many areas. Throughout the pandemic those patients with the greatest 

clinical need for hospital treatment were prioritised and when pressure on services relaxed, 

services were restored as quickly and as safely as possible. However, continuing operational 

pressures have resulted in the majority of constitutional performance targets being missed.  

While joint mutual support arrangements were already in place and working well across the 

Devon system, even closer joint working between organisations has been an important element 

of the drive for improvement. Despite this, NHS Devon has seen a challenging year in terms of 

performance with many of the key metrics being impacted by staffing challenges, capacity in 

acute hospitals and community, strikes and infection outbreaks resulting in increased length of 

stay for patients with many having delayed discharges after their admission to an acute 

hospital. Our growing and ageing population means that we are caring for more people than 

ever before who are living with complex conditions leading to unprecedented demand for 

services. 

Work on the recovery of performance is gathering pace with plans developed to achieve or to 

move closer to achieving national targets, for example with detailed urgent care recovery plans 

and a programme to tackle the backlog of people whose treatment has been delayed.  

More detail regarding 2022/23 performance against each of the key national standards is 

provided below. 
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Cancer - percentage treated within 62 days - urgent referral to first 
definitive treatment  

Although under the national target, the One Devon position has remained above the national 
average of 61.5%.  As at January 2023, the One Devon System treated 62.1% of patients 
within 62 days. 

KPI Target ICS Devon RDU UHP TSDFT England

Referral to treatment - Percentage treated within 18 

weeks - Incomplete Pathways
92% 52.7% 53.0% 57.0% 48.6% 60.7%

Proportion of over-52-week waiters 0 9.8% 9.7% 6.8% 11.3% 5.50%

Proportion of over-78-week waiters 0 2.1% 1.9% 2.2% 1.9% 0.09%

Proportion of over-104-week waiters 0 0.4% 0.4% 0.7% 0.2% 0.01%

Diagnostic waiting times - Percentage treated within 6 

weeks
99% 62.7% 54.0% 80.6% 68.2% 72.0%

Accident and emergency percentage seen within four 

hours (type 1)
85% 46.4% 51.4% N/A 36.1% 56.5%

Accident and emergency percentage seen within four 

hours (All)
95% 62.7% 60.6% N/A 57.4% 70.4%

Ambualnce handover delayes over 15 min (Feb) 74.8% 64.8% 83.7% 75.9% NA

Mean ambulance response time category 2 (Average 

YTD)
75.00 50.5

Two Week Wait From GP Urgent Referral to First 

Consultant Appointment
93% 66.8% 67.7% 79.4% 51.0% 78.0%

Two Week Wait Breast Symptomatic 93% 51.2% 59.5% 28.7% 69.1% 70.2%

One Month Wait from a Decision to Treat to a First 

Treatment for Cancer
96% 92.9% 87.4% 94.8% 95.3% 70.2%

One Month Wait from a Decision to Treat to a 

Subsequent Treatment for Cancer (Anti-Cancer Drug 

Regimen)

98% 98.9% 97.3% 99.8% 99.6% 70.2%

One Month Wait from a Decision to Treat to a 

Subsequent Treatment for Cancer (Radiotherapy)
94% 98.1% 98.6% 98.5% 96.5% 70.2%

One Month Wait from a Decision to Treat to a 

Subsequent Treatment for Cancer (Surgery)
94% 83.9% 73.8% 88.2% 91.8% 70.2%

Two Month Wait from GP Urgent Referral to a First 

Treatment for Cancer
85% 62.1% 59.2% 65.4% 69.8% 61.5%

Two Month Wait from a National Screening Service to a 

First Treatment for Cancer
90% 68.6% 22.6% 71.5% 80.9% 69.1%

Two Month Wait Following a Consultant Upgrade to a 

First Treatment for Cancer
85% 71.5% 72.8% 68.2% 53.3% 75.1%

Four Week (28 days) Wait From Urgent Referral to 

Patient Told they have Cancer, or Cancer is Definitively 

Excluded

75% 73.9% 71.4% 78.6% 70.1% 69.8%
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Cancer - percentage seen within 2 weeks – urgent referral to first 
seen  

One Devon system performance remained below the national 93% target throughout the year 
at 66.8% and below the national average of 78%.  
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18-Week referral to treatment (RTT) 

The One Devon system saw 52.7% of patients within 18 weeks compared to a national average 
of 60.7% and a target of 92%. 

 

Number of people waiting over 104 weeks for treatment (RTT) 

The number of people waiting more than two years for treatment has decreased from 1,198 in April 
2022 to 272 patients in January 2023. 
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6-Week diagnostic waits 

Performance rates remain low at 62.7% of people seen within six weeks, which is below the 
national average of 72% and target of 99%. 

 

 

A&E 4-hour waits 

A&E performance was below the 95% target at One Devon system level during 2022/23 with all 
providers below target, reflecting the deteriorating national position.  
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Ambulance arrivals – handover delays of more than 15 minutes 

 

Mean ambulance response times category 2 

February national position = 32.2 minutes, Devon = 37.7 minutes 
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NHS 111 response times 

The national average speed to answer calls from April 2022 was 451 seconds, with Devon at 
555 seconds. 

 

There have been improvements in performance since a new provider took over the service in 
October 2022. December 2022 saw an unprecedented spike in demand due to community 
infections. 

 

Mental health – out of area bed days 

NHS Devon has seen a large reduction in the number of (inappropriate) out-of-area placement 
bed days from 1,089 in April 2021 to 479 in July 2022, which is the latest available data.  

 

  

0.0

1,000.0

2,000.0

3,000.0

4,000.0

5,000.0

6,000.0

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

2022-23

A
ve

ra
ge

 s
p

e
e

d
 t

o
 a

n
sw

e
r 

ca
lls

KPI2 - Average speed to answer calls

KPI3 - 95th centile call answer time

Target

0.0

200.0

400.0

600.0

800.0

1,000.0

1,200.0

A
p

r

M
ay Ju
n

Ju
l

A
u

g

Se
p

O
ct

N
o

v

D
e

c

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

A
p

r

M
ay Ju
n

Ju
l

A
u

g

Se
p

O
ct

N
o

v

D
e

c

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

2021-22 2022-23

M
e

n
ta

l H
e

at
h

 o
u

t 
o

f 
ar

e
a 

b
e

d
 d

ay
s

NHS Devon

NHS Devon



 Page 23 
  

Physical health checks for patients with severe mental illness 

The latest national performance is 47.8% against a target of 60%, with NHS Devon achieving 
46.6% on an improving trajectory. 

Mental Health 

The Mental Health Investment Standard (MHIS), set by NHS England (NHSE), requires all 
integrated care boards in England to increase their planned spending on Mental Health 
services by a greater proportion than their overall increase in budget allocation each year. 

Based on the above expectations, NHSE sets an annual MHIS uplift target for each Integrated 
Care Board (ICB) which is used to calculate the total expenditure to be achieved. This target is 
calculated using the prior year’s spend and applies the percentage uplift. In 2022/23, NHS 
Devon had a 7.22% MHIS uplift target to achieve.   

As shown in the table below, the 2022/23 annual spend on mental health services totalled 
£269.9 million equating to a MHIS uplift of 10.3% (£25.2m) in comparison to the 7.22% target. 

 

 2021/22 (Audited) 2022/23 (Unaudited) 

Mental health spend £244.7m £269.9m 

ICB programme allocation £1,989.4m £2,305.0m 

Mental health spend as a 
proportion of ICB programme 
allocation 

12.3% 11.7% 

The total spend on Mental Health services in 2022/23 equated to 11.7% of the overall NHS 
Devon programme allocation.   

The overall programme allocation has increased by 15.9% due to additional allocations in-year 
for Service Development Framework (SDF) transformation, virtual wards, Demand and 
Capacity and Elective Recovery, which contributes to the reduction in the proportion of mental 
health spend within NHS Devon. 

The majority of mental health investments in 2022/23 were placed in core mental health 
provider contracts for adults and children and young people’s services, aligning with the 
priorities of the NHS Long Term Plan. In addition, expenditure increased with voluntary sector 
organisations, Individual Patient Placements and Continuing Healthcare. 

Through this investment in 2022/23, across NHS Devon, we have made good progress towards 
realising the mental health ambitions articulated in the NHS Long Term Plan. The following 
section sets out the key progress achieved in 2022/23.   

In line with national policy for Integrated Care Systems, in 2022/23 Devon has established a 
Provider Collaborative for Mental Health, Learning Disabilities and Neurodiversity.   

Infrastructure to support the provider collaborative has been developed, including its Clinical 
Senate, Strategic Oversight Group and Executive Group, and, in 2022/23, that collaborative 
group, led within Devon Partnership NHS Trust, has had oversight of the progress outlined 
below.  This is formative step for MHLDN commissioning in Devon, and during the coming year 
formal delegations and responsibilities are due to be further developed in line with NHS 
Devon’s priorities for it population. 

Perinatal Mental Health: In Devon there are around 11,200 births per year; around one in four 
mothers experience mental health problems in pregnancy and during the 24 months after giving 
birth. Around 2,800 women in our area will experience a perinatal mental health problem, the 
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NHS Long Term Plan ambition was to support 1,115 women and birthing people per year, to 
extend the period of perinatal care up to 24 months postnatally, extend the range of therapies 
and offer partners mental health assessment and signposting as needed. 

In 2022/23, in the Plymouth area services expanded their offer and moved towards delivering 
the wider Long Term Plan ambitions, supporting people for up to 24 months postnatally. Across 
Devon, perinatal mental health teams have continued to access wider training, broadening their 
offer of support for women and birthing people.  

Children and Young People’s Mental Health: The Long Term Plan recognised that children 
and young people represent a third of our population and that mental health problems often 
develop in childhood and adolescence, and that ensuring access to support gives children and 
young people the best chance for a happy and healthy life. We also know that children and 
young people’s mental health has been adversely impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic. 

Across Devon in 2022/23 we have: 

• Continued to increase access to NHS-funded mental health support 

• Continued the expansion of Mental Health Support Teams in schools. Three 
additional Mental Health Support Teams have completed training and become 
operational, bringing the total number of operational teams to 7. Some 83 education 
settings are now working with a Mental Health Support in Team, covering around 
52,500 children and young people (22,500 more children and young people than in 
2021/22).  

• Worked with VCSE partners to bring youth workers into our acute hospitals to 
support children and young people who are experiencing or approaching mental 
health crisis. This support provides practical and emotional support to enable them to 
return home as soon as clinically appropriate.  

We know that there remains significant un-met need in this area. 

NHS Talking Therapies for Adults: Nine out of ten people with mental health problems are 
supported in primary care.  NHS Talking Therapies ((formerly known as Improving Access to 
Psychological Therapies, IAPT), support people experiencing stress, anxiety and depression.  
These conditions are also a leading cause of lost workdays, and so recovery is both good for 
the individual and has a positive economic impact.  

Across Devon in 2022/23: 

• People who accessed NHS Talking Therapies continued to get prompt access to the 
service with over 90% of people having their first appointment within six weeks of 
referral 

• The rate of recovery across Devon continues to achieve the national standard 

• Demand for NHS Talking Therapies continues to be lower than anticipated 

• Teams continue to diversify the therapeutic offer in response to the needs of people 
in Devon following the Covid pandemic. 

All-age online support for mental health and wellbeing: An online digital platform called 
QWELL can be accessed by adults (aged 18+) across Devon. This platform enables individuals 
to access a range of resources including peer support, articles and journals to enable people to 
manage their own emotional health and wellbeing. Individuals can also access one-to-one 
anonymous counselling through ‘type talk/.’ Across Devon there is now an all-age online 
platform that anyone can access, regardless of age. This includes care-experienced young 
people who may not currently be living in Devon but who once were cared for by Devon.  

Community mental health transformation: The Community Mental Health Framework has 
continued to be implemented in 2022/23 and the core offer is now rolled out to all 31 Primary 
Care Networks, multi-agency teams working across mental health, primary care and the VCSE 
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sector, who are working differently to respond to the needs of adults and older adults across 
Devon. Recovery practitioners employed by Devon Mental Health Alliance are in place across 
Devon and are working holistically with people with mental illness to respond to their 
personalised and holistic needs. This is beginning to have an impact on referral patterns and 
there is growing qualitative evidence that people and their families are benefitting. 

Physical health checks for adults with severe mental illness: Helping people with severe 
mental illness to access physical health care is essential to addressing the 15-20-year gap in 
life expectancy which people with severe mental illness experience, compared to the wider 
population. The physical health check is a key step in identifying the physical health needs of 
people with severe mental illness and helping them to access the care and treatment they need 
to be equally well. 

Since December 2020, the number of people accessing a physical health check in the last 12 
months has increased by 95%, or 2,170 people. This is significant progress which continues to 
move towards achievement of the national target.  

Helping people with eating disorders: Across Devon, our mental health providers, primary 
care, acute hospitals and wider partners held a summit to agree how we can better meet the 
needs of people living with eating disorders and disordered eating. Children and young people 
across Devon can now access eating disorder services within one week of an urgent referral 
and the average waiting time for routine referrals continues to improve towards the national 
waiting time standard.  Additional investments have enabled new community clinics to better 
monitor the physical health impacts of these conditions.   

Urgent and crisis mental health heeds: Across Devon, the Urgent and Crisis Mental Health 
Programme continues to support improvement in delivery. The team collaboratively secured 
additional investment in 2022/23 from the system discharge funding which enabled a temporary 
increase in capacity in Devon’s Place of Safety, commissioning of additional bed-based 
provision and commissioning of an alternative to the emergency department in Plymouth.  

Mental health practitioners are now working within South Western Ambulance Service NHS 
Foundation Trust, supporting improved responses to people in mental health crisis, which has 
resulted in fewer people experiencing a mental health crisis being taken to emergency 
departments by ambulance while ensuring that they receive the care and support required. 

During 2022/23, all-age 24-hour crisis phone lines continued, with some internal changes that 
enabled resilience from a staffing perspective. Investment has also been used to enable 
children and young people presenting in a crisis to receive an assessment, response and 
intervention until 10pm at night. 

Adult and older adults inpatient care: Across Devon, a major focus of recent years has been 
working towards the elimination of inappropriate out-of-area placements. Inappropriate out-of-
area placements occur where there are not enough beds available in Devon for the people that 
need them. To keep people safe and help them access care, they can be placed out of area. 
We are working to eliminate inappropriate out-of-area placements because they are associated 
with worse long-term outcomes, longer lengths of stay and are more expensive.  

Between December 2020 and December 2022, nationally there was a 5.5% decrease in 
inappropriate out of area bed days. In the same period, Devon achieved 58.5% reduction in 
inappropriate out of area bed days. This demonstrates significant progress in this area. 
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Children and young people (CYP) safeguarding 

Safeguarding – context  

The Internal Audit for Safeguarding reported in the summer of 2022 found that the 
arrangements surrounding the safeguarding function for the then Clinical Commissioning Group 
(CCG) had been significantly strengthened and gave an overall assurance opinion of 
‘Satisfactory’.  

Through the transfer of safeguarding responsibilities from the CCG to NHS Devon, robust 
reporting arrangements are in place that facilitate direct reporting from the Safeguarding and 
Protection of Vulnerable People Steering Group to the Quality and Performance Committee. 
The Steering Group is chaired by the deputy chief nursing officer. 

The Steering Group’s membership has been strengthened to include commissioning lead 
representation from across service areas. The management of safeguarding risks was found to 
be strong with close scrutiny and detailed updates provided to the Safeguarding Steering 
Group and the Quality Assurance Committee.  

The Safeguarding and Protection of Vulnerable People Steering Group meets on a quarterly 
basis and is the key group overseeing the work of the Safeguarding team and providers’ 
performance regarding safeguarding controls and issues or concerns arising. Reporting to the 
Quality and Performance Committee ensures responsibilities and statutory duties are met. The 
NHS Devon Board routinely receives the Quality and Performance Committee Chair’s report 
which summarises quality and safety matters, including safeguarding activity and related risks. 

In November 2022, a South West Integrated Care System safeguarding meeting took place 
between the assistant director for nursing (safeguarding) and regional safeguarding lead, NHS 
England South West, and key strategic leads for safeguarding within NHS Devon. Feedback 
from this meeting highlighted: 

• safeguarding remains a priority during times of pressure and change within the system 

• improved relationships and workings between safeguarding and commissioning across 
the commissioning cycle 

• the value of the Domestic Abuse and Serious Violence Pathfinder Lead, the 
commissioning of a primary care interpersonal trauma response service and the Health 
Service Journal highly commended award for NHS Devon 

• clear communication flows and oversight of delivered workstreams and also 
workstreams in progress to fulfil the One Devon’s statutory duties, including supervision 
and training requirements 

• there is strong health engagement and presence within the safeguarding partnerships 
and the NHS Devon CNO chair two of them, with other NHS Devon team members 
leading on sub-group work. 

 

Children and young people  

NHS Devon has secured the expertise of designated professionals for safeguarding children, 
adults and children in care and care leavers, in addition to a Domestic Abuse and Sexual 
Violence lead, and a Liberty Protection Safeguards (LPS) lead. Furthermore, individual 
Designated Professionals have taken on lead roles around Prevent and Exploitation.  
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An LPS Steering Group has been established to ensure readiness for the Liberty Protection 
Safeguards and a number of workstream programmes have been set up, led by the head of 
safeguarding. Although the implementation of the new LPS arrangements has been delayed, 
NHS Devon is monitoring developments, considering options and planning in readiness for the 
new ‘Responsible Bodies’ duties as far as possible. 

NHS Devon, as one of the three key safeguarding partners, works together with local authority 
and police partners to safeguard and promote the welfare of children across the three 
safeguarding children’s partnerships within the NHS Devon footprint.  

Each Safeguarding Children Partnership Executive Meeting is attended by either the chief 
nursing officer or deputy chief nursing officer. Designated nurses for safeguarding children 
further support the local arrangements through attendance at Board meetings, and attendance 
at, and chairing of relevant subgroups. 

There is regular designated nurse contribution to the Child Death Overview Panel meetings, 
and a process has been embedded that supports improved information sharing between CDOP 
and the safeguarding children partnerships.  

Provision of safeguarding supervision and attendance at provider organisations’ internal 
safeguarding committee meetings support robust monitoring of action plans and 
recommendations for health partners across the system, in addition to the quality assurance of 
safeguarding processes through contractual arrangements.  Any concerns are escalated by 
exception to the NHS Devon Safeguarding and Protection of Vulnerable People Steering 
Group. 

Further details of the partnership governance structures can be found within the local 
safeguarding arrangements published on the corresponding partnership websites as below: 

http://torbaysafeguarding.org.uk/  

https://plymouthscb.co.uk/  

https://www.dcfp.org.uk/  

Each partnership publishes an annual report, which details how the NHS Devon executive 
safeguarding lead and designated professionals have supported progression of the 
safeguarding arrangements and identified priorities.  

They can be found here: 

http://torbaysafeguarding.org.uk/media/1545/tscp-annual-report-2021-22.pdf  

https://www.dcfp.org.uk/document/annual-report-on-safeguarding-arrangements-2021-22/  

https://www.plymouthscb.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/08/PSCP-Annual-Report-April-
2022-Published.pdf 

Emerging themes from child safeguarding practice reviews, rapid reviews and child death 
overview panel, have included safe sleeping, neglect, adolescent mental health and suicide 
and non-accidental injury in babies.  

http://torbaysafeguarding.org.uk/
https://plymouthscb.co.uk/
https://www.dcfp.org.uk/
http://torbaysafeguarding.org.uk/media/1545/tscp-annual-report-2021-22.pdf
https://www.dcfp.org.uk/document/annual-report-on-safeguarding-arrangements-2021-22/
https://www.plymouthscb.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/08/PSCP-Annual-Report-April-2022-Published.pdf
https://www.plymouthscb.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/08/PSCP-Annual-Report-April-2022-Published.pdf
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Significant work has been undertaken by the designated professionals to support the health 
and safeguarding arrangements for asylum seekers and refugees across the NHS Devon 
geographical patch. Working with commissioners and the local authority, there is clear 
oversight of safeguarding concerns and contribution to relevant meetings, in addition to working 
with health providers supporting the people in hotels locally.  

Adults  

The NHS Devon safeguarding team delivers the statutory functions as directed within the Care 
Act 2014, the Children Act 1989 and 2004, the Health of Children in Care 2015, the Domestic 
Abuse Act 202, the Police, Crime, Sentencing and Courts Act 2022 and the counter terrorism 
strategy including Prevent and the Mental Capacity Act 2005. Consideration is also given to 
other statutory legislation linked to safeguarding which includes child sexual exploitation, 
female genital mutilation and modern slavery. NHS Devon also works to the Safeguarding 
Children, Young People and Adults at Risk in the NHS: Safeguarding Accountability and 
Assurance Framework 2022. Safeguarding is a high priority for the organisation.  

NHS Devon ensures it has robust arrangements in place to provide strong leadership, vision 
and direction for safeguarding. NHS Devon has clear and accessible policies in line with 
relevant legislation, statutory guidance and best practice. NHS Devon has a clear line of 
accountability for safeguarding in that an Accountable Officer and Executive Lead for 
Safeguarding is in place. Designated health professional roles are in place as outlined in the 
Intercollegiate Guidance and additional safeguarding nurse capacity has been implemented to 
support NHS Devon in its role as a delegated commissioner for primary care medical services. 
The team has also expanded its expertise and capacity to improve the health response in 
Devon to interpersonal trauma and serious violence. 

The integrated safeguarding team supports both health providers and multi-agency partners 
working at a local, strategic and national level on safeguarding issues that have an impact on 
the health and wellbeing of children, young people and adults. NHS Devon works in partnership 
with the police and local authorities to share the responsibility for arrangements that safeguard 
and promote the welfare of children and adults in Devon. It takes an active strategic leadership 
role, supporting and engaging others; and implementing local and national learning, including 
from child safeguarding practice reviews, safeguarding adult reviews and domestic homicide 
reviews. The safeguarding team works in collaboration with commissioned providers to gain 
assurances regarding statutory responsibilities. There is regular reporting and assurance 
through the Safeguarding and Protection of Vulnerable People Steering Group and quarterly 
reports to the Quality and Performance Committee. 

 

Environmental matters 

The One Devon system supports the co-ordination of carbon reduction across the system 

through the actions to reach net-zero outlined in the Devon Greener NHS plans and the Devon 

Carbon Plan. One Devon also recognises the need to identify the key risks to our system from 

climate change and to develop a plan to adapt to and mitigate these risks. Addressing the 

climate and ecological emergency is an opportunity to create a fairer, healthier, more resilient 

and more prosperous society. Encouraging everyone to be more active by walking and cycling; 

improving air quality through the electrification of vehicles; insulating homes and workplaces, 

and eating more sustainable and balanced diets will all improve public health and reduce 

pressures on the NHS and social care. 

https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.england.nhs.uk%2Fsouth%2Four-work%2Fgreener-nhs-south-west%2Fdevon%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cdarin.halifax%40nhs.net%7C47e6eb5088be4ac95f9708db1a68f633%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638132810328824785%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=AkpsbT6U1hRgFWRWTYt6N%2B2LUg8d5g%2BmyHVN4PEiBD0%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdevonclimateemergency.org.uk%2Fview-devon-carbon-plan%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cdarin.halifax%40nhs.net%7C47e6eb5088be4ac95f9708db1a68f633%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638132810328824785%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=WqpVLru2ilYpbpifIYIdSRJ%2FIVLxbrSn3SpiYB87Adc%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdevonclimateemergency.org.uk%2Fview-devon-carbon-plan%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cdarin.halifax%40nhs.net%7C47e6eb5088be4ac95f9708db1a68f633%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638132810328824785%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=WqpVLru2ilYpbpifIYIdSRJ%2FIVLxbrSn3SpiYB87Adc%3D&reserved=0
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In order for the NHS to reach net zero carbon emissions by 2040, for the emissions it controls 

directly, and 2045 for those it can influence, we are aiming to achieve the following through the 

Green Plan: 

 

WORKFORCE AND SYSTEM LEADERSHIP 

• Support our staff to become carbon champions 

• Encourage our staff to be green innovators 

• Create an environment that promotes a highly motivated, engaged green workforce 
 

SUSTAINABLE MODELS OF CARE 

• Consider carbon reduction principles when delivering care across the whole system 
 
DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION 

• Continue to provide options for staff to work flexibly 

• Actively promote the digital option for our patients across the system 
 

TRAVEL AND TRANSPORT 

• Actively support and promote travel that does not use petrol- and diesel-powered vehicles 

• Promote a good balance of home and office working 
 

ESTATE AND FACILITIES 

• Purchase our energy supply from renewable energy sources 

• Ensure all new and future developments are green positive 

• Reduce gas, electric and water usage to cut carbon emissions 
 
MEDICINES 

• Optimise the use of carbon friendly medical gases where possible 

• Prioritise the prescribing of lower carbon inhalers 

• Reduce the use of single-use plastics. 
 
SUPPLY CHAIN AND PROCUREMENT 

• Apply the Social Value Act in all procurement processes 

• Buy locally where possible 

• All suppliers of goods and services to be aligned to the NHS Net Zero Target 
 
FOOD AND NUTRITION 

• Offer healthier lower carbon options for all – staff, patients and visitors 

• Buy locally where possible. 
 
ADAPTATION 

• Ensure we and our patients are prepared for future extreme weather conditions  
 
Achievements to date include the recruitment of a Primary Care Clinical Green Lead who is 
creating a network of other primary care leads across ICS boundaries, the cessation of the use 
of Desflurane, an anaesthetic that has a global warming potential 2,500 times greater than 
carbon dioxide, across all of our Trusts and the Social Vale/Green Agenda being a key factor in 
our procurement and commissioning decision-making. 
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Improving quality  

NHS Devon functions  

NHS Devon continues to undertake statutory and non-statutory functions. Quality Systems and 
Assurance processes that enable this include:  

• Statutory safeguarding, quality and equality assurance  

• Ongoing implementation of Better Births through the Local Maternity and Neonatal 
System (LMNS), including the recommendations from the Ockenden Report 

• Continued provision of continuing healthcare services for those with ongoing needs, 
ensuring that people can access the care that they need in a timely way 

• Monitoring of patient safety serious incidents 

• Learning from deaths 

• Medical examiners 

• Infection prevention and control (IPC); antimicrobial resistance (AMR), Healthcare 
associated infections (HCAI) 

• Independent investigations (including mental health homicides) 

• Regulation 28 reports 

• Judicial reviews 

• Controlled drugs assurance and oversight   

• Complaints 

• Whistleblowing and Freedom to Speak Up  

• Review of provider quality accounts  

 
Quality Governance:     

Quality is defined for the purposes of the Quality and Performance Committee in line with the 
National Quality Board (NQB) definition of quality, a shared single view of quality, that there is 
“high-quality, personalised and equitable care for all, now and into the future”. Systems that 
support the delivery of care are expected to be: 

• Safe – delivered in a way that minimises things going wrong and maximises things going 
right; continuously reduces risk, empowers, supports and enables people to make safe 
choices and protects people from harm, neglect, abuse and breaches of their human 
rights; and ensures improvements are made when problems occur.  

• Effective – informed by consistent and up to date high quality training, guidelines and 
evidence; designed to improve the health and wellbeing of a population and address 
inequalities through prevention and by addressing the wider determinants of health; 
delivered in a way that enables continuous quality improvements based on research, 
evidence, benchmarking and clinical audit. 

• A positive experience – responsive and personalised, shaped by what matters to people, 
their preferences and strengths; empowers people to make informed decisions and design 
their own care; coordinated; inclusive and equitable 

• Caring – delivered with compassion, dignity and mutual respect.  

• Well-led – driven by collective and compassionate leadership, which champions a shared 
vision, values and learning; delivered by accountable organisations and systems with 
proportionate governance; driven by continual promotion of a just and inclusive culture, 
allowing organisations to learn rather than blame.  

• Sustainably-resourced – focused on delivering optimum outcomes within financial 
envelopes, reduces impact on public health and the environment.  
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• Quality care is also equitable – everybody should have access to high-quality care and 
outcomes, and those working in systems must be committed to understanding and 
reducing variation and inequalities. 

In line with the formation of NHS Devon from 1 July 2022 onwards, the Quality and 
Performance Committee (QPC) was established.   

The committee supports a single framework of governance that enables NHS Devon and its 
Local Care Partnerships (LCP) to collaboratively to drive improvement to quality, delivery, and 
outcomes against each of the dimensions of quality set out in the ‘Shared Commitment to 
Quality’ and enshrined in the Health and Care Act 2022.   

We have been working collectively to ensure we are effectively discharging the purpose of our 
role: to scrutinise the robustness of, and gain and provide assurance to NHS Devon, that there 
is an effective system of quality governance and internal control that supports it to effectively 
deliver its strategic objectives and provide sustainable, high quality care. 

NHS Devon Quality Governance Structure: 

 

Wrapped around this is a defined governance and escalation process for quality which ensures 
that risks are identified, mitigated and escalated effectively through the Devon Integrated Care 
Board System Quality and Performance Group (SQPG). 

The group continues to form a key part of the governance structure for system partners to 
address quality and safety risks, share learning and drive improvement. 

NHS Devon is reviewing the way its governance works to support the ongoing development of 
our approach to Quality Governance, so that we can best provide the assurance needed as 
one of the committees of the NHS Devon Board as we move into 2023/24. 

NHS Devon has drafted a Quality Strategy that will be signed off in 2023. The strategy reflects 
how improving quality, listening to and learning from patient experience, safety and 
effectiveness and reducing unwarranted variation and inequalities remains at the centre of NHS 
Devon’s policy and strategy. 
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CQC Inspection – ICBs 

From 1 April 2023, both the regulatory scope and regulatory process undertaken by the Care 
Quality Commission will change, with NHS Devon being subject to regulation compliance and 
review.  NHS Devon is ensuring that the foundation of our CQC preparedness has been put in 
place.  
 
NHS Devon looks forward to the opportunity of working closely with both system partners and 
the regulator in the coming year in order to demonstrate its commitment to improving provision 
of safe, effective, high quality care across the Devon footprint. 
 
Devon’s ‘harm profile’ 

The One Devon System continues to be extremely challenged in urgent, elective, community 
and primary care. Multiple factors contributed to this position of increased risk, including 
unprecedented urgent care activity leading to pressures in emergency departments and a 
further stepping down of some planned procedures. With on-going COVID-19 and other 
infections in the community and hospital settings, coupled with challenges within social and 
domiciliary care, patient flow issues have continued through the whole health and social care 
system throughout the year. 
 
Through collation of evidence across the system, the impact on patients continues to be 
assessed, including incidents and complaints. This information informs the risk profile and 
actions required to improve safety and experience. For example, work to assess the impact on 
patients of long waits for planned care includes analysis of serious incidents and provider 
complaints. This has informed several workstreams to improve communication with and 
support of people experiencing long waits. 
 
Experience 

Patient, family and carer feedback enables the system to embed the experience of care at the 
centre of improvement and transformation programmes including coproduction with people with 
lived experience. 

NHS Devon figures from 1 July 2022 – 31 March 2023 show an overall increase in patient 
experience reporting from the previous year, with over double the number of formal complaints 
(25 compared to 14 last year). Feedback is analysed and reflects greater pressures on delivery 
services such as mental health care and access to services. Continuing Healthcare remains an 
significant theme within patient experience. 

There has been increased activity from the Parliamentary and Health Service Ombudsman 
(PHSO), a sign of that service managing its backlogs and in turn requiring NHS Devon’s input 
into its investigations.  

PITCH* submission has increased by over 20%.   

• Formal Complaints – 25 

• Patient Experience – 742 

• NHS England Complaint Reviews – 55 

• Parliamentary and Health Service Ombudsman (PHSO) – 6 

• PITCH – 960 

*PITCH: our health and care professionals’ alerting system in place across Devon and Cornwall 
(Cornwall figures are excluded and managed by NHS Cornwall and Isles of Scilly). 
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Safety  

NHS Devon continues to have oversight and approval of all serious incident investigations, in 
addition to supporting providers with multi-agency investigations and assisting and completing 
investigations for general practice.  This financial year, there has been a slight reduction in the 
number of serious incidents reported.  This is likely to be due a combination of factors: some 
providers combining incidents into one overarching report, and mental health providers 
reporting in combination with other mental health trusts nationally.  

The patient safety specialist, and safety systems team within NHS Devon has started the 
implementation plan to move from the current Serious Incident 2015 Framework to the new 
Patient Safety Incidents Response Framework (PSIRF), whilst also supporting the providers 
within the system.  NHS Devon will need to approve providers’ PSIRF plans and policies within 
the next financial year prior to them being published. 

In addition to PSIRF, there is a new national reporting database for the recording of all levels of 
incidents, known as the Learning from Patient Safety Events (LfPSE). The new database will 
replace the current National Reporting and Learning System (NRLS) and the Strategic 
Executive Information System (StEIS). NHS Devon is supporting all providers within the system 
to transition as they will need to be compliant and reporting to LfPSE by September 2023. 

The patient safety specialist and safety systems team continue to have oversight on national 
patient safety alerts, ensuring that all relevant alerts are actioned timely by providers and 
closed within the required time allocated.  If alerts become overdue, NHS Devon monitors 
these in accordance with the providers’ local action plans. 

NHS Devon has allocated funding and plans in place to recruit two patient safety partners at 
the beginning of the next financial year.  

Effectiveness 

NHS Devon has continued to ensure effectiveness through processes that include the 
monitoring of National Clinical Audits, providers’ compliance with NICE health and care 
guidance, quality standards and technology appraisals and Getting it Right First Time (GIRFT) 
reports. 
 

The One Devon Elective Recovery Pilot is a system programme which includes leads from all 
trusts in Devon for ophthalmology and orthopaedics. A system delivery group and a steering 
group with national and regional colleagues has been set up with workstream groups 
progressing activities across all providers. 
 

Transformation and quality improvement  

Local transformation and improvement priorities have continued to reflect Devon’s commitment 
to keep quality at the heart of commissioned services. These include maternity, learning 
disabilities and autism, screening programmes, continuing healthcare, personal health budgets, 
infection prevention and control, digital transformation programmes, clinical pathways. 

This year has seen a significant shift towards whole system quality improvement, with partners 
embedded in programmes together, for example the Local Care Partnership demonstrator 
projects.  

Additionally, system quality leads have begun the process of safety training together, as we 
move towards the new incident reporting model (PSIRF). 
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Within NHS Devon itself, patient safety and quality teams have undertaken Silver QI training 
and are supporting commissioners with projects across the localities, again drawing in partners 
to support transformation and quality improvement. 

The Quality, Equality Impact Assessment (QEIA):    

The QEIA process continues to be a key tool for Devon. NHS Devon’s QEIA process and panel 

has been successfully operating for over seven years, pausing briefly during the recent 

pandemic.  The pause provided an opportunity to review the QEIA processes, learning from 

ways of working in response to the pandemic.  Changes to the process included: 

• Virtual panels (via teams as a group or individually via email distribution) which has 
increased panel attendance and allowed QEIA to be reviewed flexibly  

• The introduction of a concise QEIA tool, which has helped increase engagement from 
colleagues in the process and is much simpler to complete 

• Simplified process (including the lookback review process)  

Development of the equality section of the QEIA tool is continuing, with the support of our 
colleagues from the health equality and inequality workstreams.   

The majority of QEIAs reviewed within the NHS Devon panel are regarding internal service, 
policy, and process and pathway and commissioning changes, with a small proportion of QEIAs 
regarding our provider organisations. 

Involving and engaging people and communities 

NHS Devon has continued to pursue excellence in its engagement and involvement.   

Involvement to support equality of access and inclusion 

 

Who did we 
talk to? 

About what? 
(Project/programm
e) 

How did we say it  
(E.g. Survey/social 
media/masterclass
) 

What did we 
ask? 

What was the 
outcome? 
(inc any useful 
evidence)  

Contain 
Outbreak 
Managemen
t Fund  

Addressing 
inequalities in Covid 
19 vaccine uptake  
  
Increasing vaccine 
confidence and 
access to 
vaccinations through 
innovative 
approaches to 
vaccine delivery 
(through 2022/23)  

Emails 
Conversations 
Through 
conversations with 
relevant networks 
and VCSE 
organisations 
Landing page on 
the Involve platform 
  

To propose/run 
innovative 
engagement 
activities to 
increase vaccine 
confidence and 
uptake among 
our communities 
where the 
uptake was low. 

In total 12 different 
vaccine outreach 
initiatives across 
Devon County 
Council footprint 
were awarded 
funding. 
  
Insight will be used 
to inform Devon 
vaccine outreach 
approach. 

Vaccine 
Outreach  

Addressing 
inequalities in uptake 
and increasing 
access to flu and 
covid vaccinations 
across Devon 
(April 2022 onwards) 

Outreach clinics 
Social media 
targeted campaigns 
(between 
November 2022 
and March 2023) 
Emails 

  From April 2022 to 
31 January 2023 we 
ran 740 outreach 
clinics providing 
55,260 vaccinations. 
  
Winter vaccine 
campaigns helped to 
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Through 
involvement with 
relevant networks 
and VCSE 
organisations 
  

increase vaccine 
uptake for specific 
cohorts: The 
campaigns have 
successfully 
generated a 
significant number of 
link clicks to the NHS 
vaccination page 
(19,807) and 
reached 332,673 
people.  

Exeter Pride  
(LGBTQ+ 
communities
) 

Diversifying 
recruitment 
  
Improving staff 
retention 
  
Understanding 
barriers to accessing 
services to help 
reduce health 
inequalities 
(May 2022) 

Survey  
Conversations  

What do you 
want health and 
care to know 
about you? 

Improved insight 
from our LGBTQ+ 
communities to 
inform 
development/prioritie
s in the new NHS 
Devon Equality, 
Diversity and 
Inclusion (EDI) 
Strategy.  
  
Insights help 
informed inclusion 
pledges for staff to 
sign up to as part of 
the launch of the 
new organisation.  
  
Insights used to 
inform approach 
taken for Pride 
Month and LGBT+ 
History Month. 
  
Insights included in 
involvement audit so 
when planning to 
involve our people 
and communities – 
avoids asking them 
questions we already 
know the answer to.  

Exeter 
Respect  
(Ethnically 
diverse 
communities
) 

Diversifying 
recruitment 
  
Improving staff 
retention 
  
Understanding 
barriers to accessing 
services to help 
reduce health 
inequalities 
(June 2022) 

Survey  
Conversations 

What do you 
want health and 
care to know 
about you? 

Improved insight 
from our ethnically 
diverse communities 
to inform 
development/prioritie
s in the NHS Devon 
EDI strategy.  
  
Insights help 
informed inclusion 
pledges for staff to 
sign up to as part of 
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the launch of the 
new organisation.  
  
Fulfilment of NOUS 
recommendations  
  
Insights used to 
inform approach 
taken for Black 
History Month and 
other events/festivals 
that celebrate our 
ethnically diverse 
communities. 
  
Insights included in 
involvement audit so 
when planning to 
involve our people 
and communities – 
avoids asking them 
questions we already 
know the answer to.  

Plymouth 
Pride  
(LGBTQ+ 
communities
)  

Diversifying 
recruitment 
  
Improving staff 
retention 
  
Understanding 
barriers to accessing 
services to help 
reduce health 
inequalities 
(August 2022) 

Survey  
Conversations 

What do you 
want health and 
care to know 
about you? 

Improved insight 
from our LGBTQ+ 
communities to 
inform 
development/prioritie
s in the NHS Devon 
EDI strategy.  
  
Insights used to 
inform approach 
taken for LGBT+ 
History Month. 
  
Insights included in 
involvement audit so 
when planning to 
involve our people 
and communities – 
avoids asking them 
questions we already 
know the answer to. 
  

Plymouth 
Respect  
(Ethnically 
diverse 
communities
)  

Diversifying 
recruitment 
  
Improving staff 
retention 
  
Understanding 
barriers to accessing 
services to help 
reduce health 
inequalities 
(July 2022) 

Survey  
Conversations 

What do you 
want health and 
care to know 
about you? 

Improved insight 
from our ethnically 
diverse communities 
to inform 
development/prioritie
s in NHS Devon EDI 
strategy.  
  
Insights help 
informed inclusion 
pledges for staff to 
sign up to as part of 



 Page 37 
  

the launch of the 
new organisation.  
  
Fulfilment of NOUS 
recommendations  
  
Insights used to 
inform approach 
taken for Black 
History Month and 
other events/festivals 
that celebrate our 
ethnically diverse 
communities. 
  
Insights included in 
involvement audit so 
when planning to 
involve our people 
and communities – 
avoids asking them 
questions we already 
know the answer to. 

Totnes Pride  
(LGBTQ+ 
communities
)  

Diversifying 
recruitment 
  
Improving staff 
retention 
  
Understanding 
barriers to accessing 
services to help 
reduce health 
inequalities 
(September 2022) 

Survey  
Conversations 

What do you 
want health and 
care to know 
about you? 

Improved insight 
from our LGBTQ+ 
communities to 
inform 
development/prioritie
s in the new NHS 
Devon EDI strategy.  
  
  
Insights used to 
inform approach 
taken for LGBT+ 
History Month. 
  
Insights included in 
involvement audit so 
when planning to 
involve our people 
and communities – 
avoids asking them 
questions we already 
know the answer to. 

NHS Devon 
staff  
  
Staff from 
across the 
Integrated 
Care  
  
VCSE 
organisation
s  
  

Development of Anti-
racism statement for 
One Devon  
(June 2022) 

Survey  
  
Through 
conversations with 
relevant networks 
and VCSE 
organisations 

Do you think 
having an anti-
racism 
statement is a 
good idea? 
  
Does your 
organisation 
currently have 
an anti-racism 
statement/charte
r or something 
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Members of 
the public  

similar that you 
are aware of? 
  
What do you 
think an anti-
racism 
statement 
should include? 
  
Is there anything 
else you would 
like to tell us? 

NHS Devon 
staff  
  
One Devon 
staff  
  
-LGBTQ+ 
-Ethnically 
Diverse staff 
-Staff with 
disabilities  

Staff Listening 
events x3  
Supporting EDI 
calendar  
(June 2022) 

Listening events  What are your 
experiences of 
working in health 
and care in 
Devon?  
  
What could be 
done to make 
the organisation 
more inclusive? 
  
Is there any 
additional 
support that 
would be 
helpful? 
  
Is there anything 
else you would 
like to tell us? 

Ensure any issues 
are being addressed 
by planned EDI 
work. 
  
High level themes 
and trends shared 
with staff/EDI 
reference group to 
increase awareness.  
  
Insights helped 
inform approach for 
EDI celebrations and 
events.  
  
  
  

 

 
 

Wider involvement and engagement  

 

Who did we talk 
to? 

About what? 
(Project/prog
ramme) 

How did we 
say it  
(E.g. 
Survey/soci
al 
media/mast
erclass) 

What did we ask? What was the outcome? 
(inc any useful 
evidence)  

People on waiting 
list for 
orthopaedic, and 
ophthalmic care 
(Devon’s largest 
waiting lists), 
focusing on 
people with 
protected 
characteristics 

Protecting 
Elective Care – 
supporting 
people waiting 
for care and 
tackling the 
backlog in 
waiting for 
care.  
 

Dedicated 
focus groups 
giving 
information 
about the 
currently 
challenges 
and impacts 
on waiting 
times, along 

What the most important 
considerations for each of 
those groups of people 
were when deciding where 
to have treatment. 
 
What we (as the NHS) can 
do better to support people 
while they wait. 
 

A comprehensive report 
compiled by Healthwatch, 
that fed directly into the 
development of the NHS 
Devon’s planned care 
strategy. 
https://healthwatchdevon.co
.uk/report/protected-
elective-care-feedback-
report/ 

https://healthwatchdevon.co.uk/report/protected-elective-care-feedback-report/
https://healthwatchdevon.co.uk/report/protected-elective-care-feedback-report/
https://healthwatchdevon.co.uk/report/protected-elective-care-feedback-report/
https://healthwatchdevon.co.uk/report/protected-elective-care-feedback-report/
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Who did we talk 
to? 

About what? 
(Project/prog
ramme) 

How did we 
say it  
(E.g. 
Survey/soci
al 
media/mast
erclass) 

What did we ask? What was the outcome? 
(inc any useful 
evidence)  

covered by 
Equality, Diversity, 
and Inclusion 
(EDI), and those 
people impacted 
by rurality.  
 
Clinicians and 
operational NHS 
staff were also 
engaged 

Including 
engagement on 
potential 
options for 
elective care 
redesign 
(May 2022) 

with the 
potential 
options for 
elective care 
redesign 
 
Separate 
focus groups 
for NHS staff 
were also run 

Which options (on 
consideration of further 
information) would offer 
them the most confidence in 
tackling the backlog on 
waiting times for care.  

Children and 
Younger people in 
West Devon (11–
19-year-olds) 

Seeking 
feedback on 
children and 
young people’s 
mental health 
services in 
West Devon 
(March 2023) 

Survey 
(included 
supporting 
completion 
with younger 
children) 

Did they feel supported and 
know where to go for help? 
What did they think of the 
help they were currently 
getting 
Are there things that were 
good/bad/needed to change 
with MH services 

In progress 2022/23 (full 
report to be published) 

People and 
communities, and 
the VCSE in 
Eastern Devon 

Eastern LCP 
conference 
(November 
2022) 

1 day 
Conference 

Renew the LCP vision and 
values 
Establish and develop 
relationships 
Understand the changing 
ICB 
Strengthen VCSE voice 

Full conference report 
available at -  
https://involve.onedevon.co.
uk/easternlcp 

People and 
communities 
across Devon 

Winter recall 
engagement on 
communication
s messages 
(March 2023) 

Survey If people remembered any 
of our communication 
messages and testing if 
they did something different 
as a result 

In progress 2022/23 (full 
report to be published) 

Cost of living 
summit 

Engaging with 
VCSE and 
members of the 
public on how 
people are 
being 
supported with 
the rise in the 
cost of living 
(November 
2023) 

1 day event The event set out the 
development of the Devon 
Cost of Living Dashboard, 
heard presentations from 
Local Authorities, 
representatives from the 
NHS and Voluntary 
Community and Social 
Enterprise (VCSE) sector. 

Full event report and 
outcomes can be found 
here:  
https://involve.onedevon.co.
uk/costofliving 

People visiting 
ED departments 
across Devon 

Gathering 
feedback from 
people 
attending ED 
across Devon 
to get 
feedback on 

Face to face, 
guided 
conversation
s 

Why people decided to 
come to ED 
Did they use other 
services prior to attending 
If they would have 
preferred to go 
somewhere else, how 

In progress 22/23 (full 
report to be published) 
Following on from 
previous work in 21/22 - 
https://healthwatchdevon.
co.uk/report/emergency-
department-survey-report/ 

https://involve.onedevon.co.uk/easternlcp
https://involve.onedevon.co.uk/easternlcp
https://involve.onedevon.co.uk/costofliving
https://involve.onedevon.co.uk/costofliving
https://healthwatchdevon.co.uk/report/emergency-department-survey-report/
https://healthwatchdevon.co.uk/report/emergency-department-survey-report/
https://healthwatchdevon.co.uk/report/emergency-department-survey-report/
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Who did we talk 
to? 

About what? 
(Project/prog
ramme) 

How did we 
say it  
(E.g. 
Survey/soci
al 
media/mast
erclass) 

What did we ask? What was the outcome? 
(inc any useful 
evidence)  

their 
experience 
and why they 
chose ED 
(February 
2023)  

could we support them to 
make alternative choices 

Devon Association 
of Local Councils 

Provide an 
update on One 
Devon, why it 
has been 
introduced, 
how people 
can get 
involved and 
what benefits it 
will bring to 
improve health 
and care in 
Devon 
(October 2022) 

1 day event  
What do you see as your 
role in the new system?  
How would you like us to 
work together with you? 
What does success look 
like? And how do we 
achieve it? 
 

Development of 
understanding of the ICB 
within Local councils and to 
support genuine partnership 
working 
https://devonalc.org.uk/even
t_locations/exeter-
racecourse/   

NHS Devon and 
the people and 
communities of 
Devon 

The launch of 
the new 
online 
involvement 
platform 
(July 2022) 

Opening 
access to 
people and 
communities 
across 
Devon 

Multiple projects, 
engagement activities, 
access to  

involve.onedevon.co.uk  

Devon 
Involvement 
Network – NHS, 
VCSE and other 
health and care 
professional 

Bringing 
involvement 
professionals 
from across 
Devon together 
to support 
involvement 
activities with 
P&C 
(Monthly 
2022/23) 

Monthly 
meetings 

Supporting each other and 
involvement projects 

2 March 2023 meeting 
17 January 2023 meeting 
14 October 2022 meeting 
 

 
 
 

Involvement with the Voluntary Community and Social Enterprise sector 

Who did we 
talk to? 

About what? 
(Project/programme) 

How did we say it  
(E.g. Survey/social 
media/masterclass) 

What did we ask? 

What was the 
outcome? 
(inc any useful 
evidence)  

https://devonalc.org.uk/event_locations/exeter-racecourse/
https://devonalc.org.uk/event_locations/exeter-racecourse/
https://devonalc.org.uk/event_locations/exeter-racecourse/
file://///newdccg.nhs.uk/DCCGShared/Communications,%20Engagement%20&%20HR/Communications/SHARED%20DRIVE%20August%202018%20onwards/Engagement/01.%20Involvement/04.%202023/01.%20Annual%20report%20and%20P&C%20Assesment/involve.onedevon.co.uk
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fyoutu.be%2Fwl-bhSzY0-I&data=05%7C01%7Cjonathan.sewell%40nhs.net%7C3be89b38b95944cf8f6b08db261585e1%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638145646356420255%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=zoDcP21EvsQ0LGI8vUrCVGTurq9ZZSC7x%2FiwMqdaQms%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fyoutu.be%2F7lUALPR-3m8&data=05%7C01%7Cjonathan.sewell%40nhs.net%7C3be89b38b95944cf8f6b08db261585e1%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638145646356420255%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=rnOfMcSczFCBOaPOAxsGcH3%2F4h4RsZdR8IX1XTEuqDE%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fyoutu.be%2FZJyG1W75OJ0&data=05%7C01%7Cjonathan.sewell%40nhs.net%7C3be89b38b95944cf8f6b08db261585e1%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638145646356420255%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=W2EJ4BAUxc52OfMHeEmyekR8SogKC7Rs4eWK4qkkr80%3D&reserved=0
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People living in 
Ilfracombe and 
North Dartmoor 

Core20 Plus 5 
(2022) 

Face to face via 
Community 
Connectors 
 

What are the main 
barriers to accessing 
health care? 

GP and Community 
Podiatry services now 
delivered in community 
settings. 

People living in 
income 
deprived 
households 

Cost of Living Crisis  
(2022) 

Face to face via the 
VCSE 
 

What would help you 
the most during the 
current crisis? 

Management and 
delivery of a VCSE led 
Cost of Living 
Community Fund 
(£300k) 

People 
returning to 
“normality” after 
the pandemic 

Post Covid recovery 
(2022) 

Face to face via the 
VCSE 
 
 

What would make the 
biggest difference in 
making you feel safe? 

Management and 
delivery of a VCSE led 
Covid Outbreak 
Management Fund 
(£1.2m) 

Young people  Anxiety 
(2022) 

Face to face via the 
VCSE 

Would linking in with 
nature support you in 
managing your anxiety 

Resilient Young Minds – 
a project that delivers 
workshops on Dartmoor 
that enables young 
people to access Green 
Social Prescribing   

Virtual Ward 
Patients 

Virtual Ward 
(2023) 

Face to face via the 
VCSE 

What would enable 
you to become a 
Virtual Ward patient 
safely? 

We have commissioned 
a VCSE led Virtual 
Ward Digital Befriending 
Service 

People on 
waiting lists. 

Waiting Well 
(2022) 

Face to face via the 
VCSE, survey and 
telephone calls via 
DRSS. 

What would enable 
you to stay safe and 
well whilst you wait for 
your procedure?  

We have commissioned 
a VCSE-led Waiting 
Well support service. 

 
Political involvement: Health and wellbeing boards / Overview and Scrutiny Committees / 
MPs and Elected members 

Who did 
we talk 
to? 

About what? 
(Project/programme) 

How did we say it  
(E.g. Survey/social 
media/masterclass 
and date) 

What did we ask? What was the 
outcome? 
(inc any useful 
evidence)  

Devon 
County 
Council 
Health and 
Adult Care 
Overview 
and 
Scrutiny 
Committee  

Update on Modernising 
Health and Care 
Services in the 
Teignmouth and 
Dawlish area 
(June 2022) 

Paper presented at 
committee 

Recommendation: The 
progress and 
outcomes in the report 
are noted and that the 
CCG (to  
become NHS Devon 
from 1 July 2022) and 
the scrutiny committee 
welcome the  
advice of the IRP in 
Recommendation 6 
and continue to build 
on the recent progress  
in working more 
closely together. 

The motion to refer 
the proposed 
closure of 
Teignmouth 
Hospital to Rt Hon 
Sajid Javid MP, 
Secretary of State 
for Health and 
Social Care was 
put to a vote and 
lost.  
The report 
recommendation 
was resolved. 

Devon 
County 
Council 
Health and 
Adult Care 

Development of the 
Integrated Care System 
for Devon (which would 
be known as ‘One 

Paper presented at 
committee 

To note the update 
provided in the report. 

The Chair thanked 
the NHS officers 
for their attendance 
and Report and 
indicated the 
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Overview 
and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

Devon’ from 1 July 
2022) 

Committee’s 
support for the 
continued 
development of the 
Integrated Care 
System in Devon. 

Devon MPs  Digital innovation 
(electronic patient 
records, shared care 
records, population 
health management 
platform) (May 2022) 

In-person meeting 
and written briefing 

 Better 
understanding of 
the role that digital 
healthcare can play 
in people’s lives 
and the challenges 
to delivering it 

Plymouth 
City Council 
elected 
members  

Overview of the new 
ICS for Devon 
(June 2022) 

In-person meeting 
and presentation 

What the local councils 
see as their role in the 
new system 

Better 
understanding on 
Devon’s new 
system, challenges 
and how they can 
be involved 

Devon MPs  GP strategy for Devon 
(July 2022) 

In-person meeting 
and presentation 

Feedback on the 
strategy 

Better 
understanding of 
the pressures 
facing GP practices 
and work underway 
to address demand 
and capacity 
issues through the 
strategy 

Plymouth 
City Council 
Health and 
Adult Social 
Care 
Overview 
and 
Scrutiny 
Committee  

Urgent and Emergency 
Care 
(July 2022) 

Paper presented at 
committee 

Presentation on 
Integrated Urgent 
Care, 111 and Out of 
Hours Primary Care. 

Questions taken 
and answered 
during the meeting. 

Devon 
County 
Council 
Health and 
Adult Care 
Overview 
and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

System Development 
and Improvement 
(Sept 2022) 

Paper presented at 
committee 

The Report highlighted 
the significant 
challenges faced by 
health and social care 
partners and how new 
ways of working 
could make a 
difference to patients 
and join up the entire 
urgent and emergency 
care pathway. 

a) that a report be 
made to the 
Committee for its 
next meeting on 22 
November 2022 on 
the budget position 
and progress in 
addressing the 
target 
saving/efficiency 
savings of £142m 
across the Devon 
NHS system for the 
current financial 
year 
  
(b) that an update 
report on System 
Development and 
Improvement: 



 Page 43 
  

Winter Evaluation 
be presented to the 
March 2023 
  
(c) that a Review of 
Community 
Pharmacy be 
added to the Work 
Programme 
(Spotlight or Task 
Group review). 
 

Devon 
County 
Council 
Health and 
Adult Care 
Overview 
and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

Maximising the Role of 
Community Urgent 
Care 
(November 2022) 

Paper presented at 
committee 

The paper highlighted 
that the programme 
aims to provide 
patients with high-
quality, accessible and 
consistent services at 
a lower acuity than 
Emergency 
Departments and that 
it is a long-term 
strategy (2-5 years), 
and it does not offer 
short-term solutions to 
current issues which 
are being managed by 
our providers.  
To note the report and 
next steps.   
Respond to the test 
public engagement 
questions. 

The Chair 
requested that a 
further report is 
made following the 
consultation / 
engagement 
exercise to the next 
meeting of this 
Committee on 22 
November 2022.     

Devon 
County 
Council 
Health and 
Adult Care 
Overview 
and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

General Practice Draft 
Strategy 
(November 2022) 

Paper presented at 
committee 

To consider the report 
which set the vision for 
General Practice in 
Devon for the next 10 
years.  

Questions related 
to the paper were 
taken and 
answered during 
the committee.  
There is the 
potential for a 
follow up 
discussion on the 
commissioning of 
additional GP 
services within 
growth areas in the 
county and in line 
with District Local 
Plan Reviews. 

Plymouth 
City Council 
Health and 
Adult Social 
Care 
Overview 
and 

General Practice Draft 
Strategy 
(September 2022) 

Paper presented at 
committee 

Introduced the draft 
Primary Care Strategy 
to the Committee. 

Recommend the 
final Primary Care 
Strategy must 
include a variety of 
access methods to 
ensure inclusivity 
(digital, phone, and 
in-person), to allow 
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Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

Patients to access 
GP services in a 
timely manner 

Devon MPs  New government 
priorities for the NHS 
(ambulances, backlogs, 
social care, doctors and 
dentists) 
Housing and 
homelessness 
(Oct 2022) 

In-person meeting 
and presentation 

• Recognise and 
communicate with 
constituents about 
the scale of the 
challenge facing 
urgent care 
services 

• Reassure 
constituents on 
waiting lists that 
they will be seen 

• Recognise the 
challenges facing 
GPs and dentists 

• Better 
understanding 
of Devon’s 
progress 
against the new 
government 
priorities for the 
NHS 

• Better 
understanding 
of the housing 
market and 
needs in 
Devon, and 
how challenges 
could be 
addressed 

Devon 
Association 
of Local 
Councils  

Overview of the new 
ICS for Devon 
(Oct 2022) 

In-person meeting 
and presentation 

• What the local 
councils see as 
their role in the 
new system 

• How they would 
like us to work with 
them, what 
success looks like 

• How we can 
achieve it 

Better 
understanding on 
Devon’s new 
system, challenges 
and how they can 
be involved 

Torbay 
Council 
Adult Social 
Care and 
Health 
Overview 
and 
Scrutiny 
Sub-Board 
 

GP Strategy for Devon 
(October 2022) 

Paper presented at 
committee 

To consider the draft 
GP Strategy for Devon 
and how it impacts on 
Torbay residents. 

Questions taken 
and answered 
during committee. 
No further actions. 

Devon 
County 
Council 
Health and 
Adult Care 
Overview 
and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

NHS Devon Financial 
Overview 
 

Paper presented at 
committee 

The report covered the 
financial model for the 
ICB, historic 
challenges and the 
current financial 
position across the 
system. 

Provided members 
with a better 
understanding of 
the financial 
position and 
challenges. 
Questions were 
taken and 
answered during 
the meeting.  No 
further actions 
required.   

Devon 
County 
Council 
Health and 
Adult Care 

Integrated Care 
Strategy Development  
(November 2022) 

Paper presented at 
committee 

Review the proposed 
strategic goals, based 
on the needs analysis 
and  

Members 
recommended 
areas to reference 
in the strategy. 
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Overview 
and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

involvement feedback 
and comment on any 
perceived gaps. 
Note the next steps in 
terms of engagement 
with wider 
representatives and  
advise on any missing 
representative groups. 

Torbay 
Council 
Adult Social 
Care and 
Health 
Overview 
and 
Scrutiny 
Sub-Board 
 

One Devon Partnership 
Integrated Care 
Strategy 
(November 2022) 

Paper presented at 
committee 

Update on the One 
Devon Partnership 
Integrated  
Care Strategy. 

The Board noted 
the progress of the 
One Devon 
Partnership 
Integrated Care 
Strategy and 
recommended that 
further details 
around prevention, 
housing and 
workforce are 
included as well as 
ensuring the voice 
of the child and 
young person is 
heard. 

Devon 
County 
Council 
Health and 
Adult Care 
Overview 
and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

Spotlight Review 
into South 
Western Ambulance 
Service Trust: Six-
month update 
(January 2023) 

Paper presented at 
committee by 
SWAST Executive 
Director of 
Operations and the 
County Commander  

The progress against 
the recommendation 
were detailed in the 
Report with an 
overview of the current 
system pressures and 
mitigations in place 
where the system was 
unable to progress on 
actions due to 
pressures locally, 
regionally and 
nationally. 

The Committee 
would be keen to 
have a report 
about the NHS 111 
service in due 
course now that 
there was a new 
operator in place 
and the impact on 
SWAST and the 
hospitals. 

Plymouth 
City Council 
Health and 
Wellbeing 
Board  

Integrated Care 
strategy 
(January 2023) 

Paper presented at 
board. 

Review the strategic 
goals set out within the 
Strategy and advise 
which organisation 
should take lead 
responsibility for 
responding to the 
goals, to ensure that 
appropriate partners 
are involved, and 
existing 
strategies/plans are 
reflected. 

The report was 
noted and 
feedback logged. 
Agenda for Health 
and Wellbeing 
Board on Thursday 
26 January 2023, 
10.00 am - Modern 
Council 
(plymouth.gov.uk) 

Plymouth 
City Council 
Health and 
Adult Social 
Care 
Overview 

Urgent and emergency 
care performance 
(February 2023) 

Paper presented at 
committee. 

Update on integrated 
urgent care (111 and 
out of hours) 
performance 

The report was 
noted and 
feedback logged. 
Agenda for Health 
and Adult Social 
Care Overview and 

https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.plymouth.gov.uk%2FieListDocuments.aspx%3FCId%3D1068%26MId%3D10132&data=05%7C01%7Cjodie.howland%40nhs.net%7C0d8633a8cb334015e5c508db587886a4%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638201046895190150%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=1K0iIlzeGyYVFDTwRCobZsjT8oH0KgZJjm16NVd3CHw%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.plymouth.gov.uk%2FieListDocuments.aspx%3FCId%3D1068%26MId%3D10132&data=05%7C01%7Cjodie.howland%40nhs.net%7C0d8633a8cb334015e5c508db587886a4%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638201046895190150%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=1K0iIlzeGyYVFDTwRCobZsjT8oH0KgZJjm16NVd3CHw%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.plymouth.gov.uk%2FieListDocuments.aspx%3FCId%3D1068%26MId%3D10132&data=05%7C01%7Cjodie.howland%40nhs.net%7C0d8633a8cb334015e5c508db587886a4%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638201046895190150%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=1K0iIlzeGyYVFDTwRCobZsjT8oH0KgZJjm16NVd3CHw%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.plymouth.gov.uk%2FieListDocuments.aspx%3FCId%3D1068%26MId%3D10132&data=05%7C01%7Cjodie.howland%40nhs.net%7C0d8633a8cb334015e5c508db587886a4%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638201046895190150%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=1K0iIlzeGyYVFDTwRCobZsjT8oH0KgZJjm16NVd3CHw%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.plymouth.gov.uk%2FieListDocuments.aspx%3FCId%3D1068%26MId%3D10132&data=05%7C01%7Cjodie.howland%40nhs.net%7C0d8633a8cb334015e5c508db587886a4%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638201046895190150%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=1K0iIlzeGyYVFDTwRCobZsjT8oH0KgZJjm16NVd3CHw%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.plymouth.gov.uk%2FieListDocuments.aspx%3FCId%3D1068%26MId%3D10132&data=05%7C01%7Cjodie.howland%40nhs.net%7C0d8633a8cb334015e5c508db587886a4%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638201046895190150%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=1K0iIlzeGyYVFDTwRCobZsjT8oH0KgZJjm16NVd3CHw%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.plymouth.gov.uk%2FieListDocuments.aspx%3FCId%3D1068%26MId%3D10132&data=05%7C01%7Cjodie.howland%40nhs.net%7C0d8633a8cb334015e5c508db587886a4%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638201046895190150%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=1K0iIlzeGyYVFDTwRCobZsjT8oH0KgZJjm16NVd3CHw%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.plymouth.gov.uk%2FieListDocuments.aspx%3FCId%3D1249%26MId%3D10129%26Ver%3D4&data=05%7C01%7Cjodie.howland%40nhs.net%7C0d8633a8cb334015e5c508db587886a4%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638201046895190150%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=uJJK6n%2BKvk6nzB09ALSWZLw4tEwWY4XLtmvsTY2dW7Y%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.plymouth.gov.uk%2FieListDocuments.aspx%3FCId%3D1249%26MId%3D10129%26Ver%3D4&data=05%7C01%7Cjodie.howland%40nhs.net%7C0d8633a8cb334015e5c508db587886a4%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638201046895190150%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=uJJK6n%2BKvk6nzB09ALSWZLw4tEwWY4XLtmvsTY2dW7Y%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.plymouth.gov.uk%2FieListDocuments.aspx%3FCId%3D1249%26MId%3D10129%26Ver%3D4&data=05%7C01%7Cjodie.howland%40nhs.net%7C0d8633a8cb334015e5c508db587886a4%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638201046895190150%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=uJJK6n%2BKvk6nzB09ALSWZLw4tEwWY4XLtmvsTY2dW7Y%3D&reserved=0
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and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

Scrutiny 
Committee on 
Wednesday 8 
February 2023, 
2.00 pm - Modern 
Council 
(plymouth.gov.uk) 

Torbay 
Council 
Health and 
Wellbeing 
Board  
 

Integrated Care 
Strategy 
(March 2023) 

Paper presented at 
board. 

Members were asked 
to review the strategic 
goals set out within the 
Integrated Care 
Strategy.  
Members were asked 
to confirm the process 
for their response to 
the Joint Forward Plan. 

Members 
welcomed the draft 
plan and its 
strategic goals 
which presented an 
opportunity for 
change where that 
was 
needed. Members 
resolved that the 
draft Joint Forward 
Plan takes proper 
account of the Joint 
Local Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy. 

Plymouth 
City Council 
Health and 
Adult Social 
Care 
Overview 
and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

West End Hub 
Programme Delivery 
(Cavell Centre) 
(Additional meeting 
March 2023) 

Paper discussed at 
committee 

This paper identifies 
the options for the 
future of the Plymouth 
Cavell project and 
addressing the primary 
care and inequality 
challenges in the west 
of the city following the 
withdrawal of capital 
from NHS England. 

Recommendations 
received from 
Plymouth City 
Council. 

Devon 
County 
Council 
Health and 
Adult Care 
Overview 
and 
Scrutiny 
Committee  

System Development 
and Improvement: 
Winter Update 
(March 2023) 

Paper presented at 
committee 

A report to update 
committee members of 
the winter performance 
of the health and social 
care system across 
Devon mid-way 
through the season. 

An action was 
suggested that 
Healthwatch could 
be asked to review 
the performance of 
the 111 Service. 

 
  

https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.plymouth.gov.uk%2FieListDocuments.aspx%3FCId%3D1249%26MId%3D10129%26Ver%3D4&data=05%7C01%7Cjodie.howland%40nhs.net%7C0d8633a8cb334015e5c508db587886a4%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638201046895190150%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=uJJK6n%2BKvk6nzB09ALSWZLw4tEwWY4XLtmvsTY2dW7Y%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.plymouth.gov.uk%2FieListDocuments.aspx%3FCId%3D1249%26MId%3D10129%26Ver%3D4&data=05%7C01%7Cjodie.howland%40nhs.net%7C0d8633a8cb334015e5c508db587886a4%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638201046895190150%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=uJJK6n%2BKvk6nzB09ALSWZLw4tEwWY4XLtmvsTY2dW7Y%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.plymouth.gov.uk%2FieListDocuments.aspx%3FCId%3D1249%26MId%3D10129%26Ver%3D4&data=05%7C01%7Cjodie.howland%40nhs.net%7C0d8633a8cb334015e5c508db587886a4%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638201046895190150%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=uJJK6n%2BKvk6nzB09ALSWZLw4tEwWY4XLtmvsTY2dW7Y%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.plymouth.gov.uk%2FieListDocuments.aspx%3FCId%3D1249%26MId%3D10129%26Ver%3D4&data=05%7C01%7Cjodie.howland%40nhs.net%7C0d8633a8cb334015e5c508db587886a4%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638201046895190150%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=uJJK6n%2BKvk6nzB09ALSWZLw4tEwWY4XLtmvsTY2dW7Y%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.plymouth.gov.uk%2FieListDocuments.aspx%3FCId%3D1249%26MId%3D10129%26Ver%3D4&data=05%7C01%7Cjodie.howland%40nhs.net%7C0d8633a8cb334015e5c508db587886a4%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638201046895190150%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=uJJK6n%2BKvk6nzB09ALSWZLw4tEwWY4XLtmvsTY2dW7Y%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.plymouth.gov.uk%2FieListDocuments.aspx%3FCId%3D1249%26MId%3D10129%26Ver%3D4&data=05%7C01%7Cjodie.howland%40nhs.net%7C0d8633a8cb334015e5c508db587886a4%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638201046895190150%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=uJJK6n%2BKvk6nzB09ALSWZLw4tEwWY4XLtmvsTY2dW7Y%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.plymouth.gov.uk%2FieListDocuments.aspx%3FCId%3D1249%26MId%3D10129%26Ver%3D4&data=05%7C01%7Cjodie.howland%40nhs.net%7C0d8633a8cb334015e5c508db587886a4%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638201046895190150%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=uJJK6n%2BKvk6nzB09ALSWZLw4tEwWY4XLtmvsTY2dW7Y%3D&reserved=0
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Social media involvement 

Who did we 
talk to? 

About 
what? 
(Project/ 
programm
e) 

How did we say it  
(E.g. Survey/social media 
/masterclass) 

What did we ask? 

What 
was the 
outcome
? 
(inc any 
useful 
evidenc
e)  

Follow up 
from talking to 
people 
attending 
Exeter Pride 
2022 

What 
would you 
like the 
NHS to 
know – 
catered to 
specific 
communitie
s. 
(June 
2022) 

Social Media sharing survey and 
follow up article in the One 
Devon Bulletin:  
https://www.icsdevon.co.uk/liste
ning-to-lgbtqia-communities-at-
exeter-pride/ 

Thank you for those who spoke 
to us on Saturday @ExeterPride 
and provided feedback for the 
NHS in Devon. If you missed the 
opportunity we have an 
anonymous online feedback 
form for the LGBTQ+ community 
#LGBTQ+ #IDAHOBIT Visit: 
http://ow.ly/j3Gg50J7eaT 

897 
Instagra
m 
followers 
 
11.4k 
Twitter 
followers 
 
7.8k 
followers 
on 
Faceboo
k 

Posted on 
social media – 
online 
communities 
and 
followers/syst
em 
colleagues. 
Specifically 
targeting 
ethnically 
diverse, faith 
and belief 
communities 
in Devon 
(Exeter)  

What 
would you 
like the 
NHS to 
know – 
catered to 
specific 
communitie
s. 
(June 
2022) 

Social Media sharing survey Today at Exeter Respect we are 
asking our ethnically diverse, 
faith and belief communities in 
Devon – what would they like us 
to know?  

 
Help us improve our services for 
our ethnically diverse, faith and 
belief communities in Devon and 
answer our short survey - 
https://forms.office.com/r/Ys8wAi
ifyW 

897 
Instagra
m 
followers 
 
11.4k 
Twitter 
followers 
 
7.8k 
followers 
on 
Faceboo
k 

Posted on 
social media – 
online 
communities 
and 
followers/syst
em 
colleagues. 
Specifically 
targeting 
ethnically 
diverse, faith 
and belief 
communities 
in Devon 
(Plymouth) 
 

What 
would you 
like the 
NHS to 
know – 
catered to 
specific 
communitie
s. 
(Summer 
2022) 

Social Media sharing survey Today at Plymouth Respect we 
are asking our ethnically diverse, 
faith and belief communities in 
Devon – what would they like us 
to know? If you are unable to 
attend and would like to 
contribute, please answer our 
short survey - 
https://forms.office.com/r/Ys8wAi
ifyW 

897 
Instagra
m 
followers 
 
11.4k 
Twitter 
followers 
 
7.8k 
followers 
on 
Faceboo
k 

https://www.icsdevon.co.uk/listening-to-lgbtqia-communities-at-exeter-pride/
https://www.icsdevon.co.uk/listening-to-lgbtqia-communities-at-exeter-pride/
https://www.icsdevon.co.uk/listening-to-lgbtqia-communities-at-exeter-pride/
https://twitter.com/ExeterPride/
https://twitter.com/hashtag/LGBTQ%2B/
https://twitter.com/hashtag/IDAHOBIT/
http://ow.ly/j3Gg50J7eaT
https://forms.office.com/r/Ys8wAiifyW
https://forms.office.com/r/Ys8wAiifyW
https://forms.office.com/r/Ys8wAiifyW
https://forms.office.com/r/Ys8wAiifyW
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Posted on 
social media – 
online 
communities 
and 
followers/syst
em 
colleagues. 
Specifically 
targeted to 
people with 
disabilities.  
 

What 
would you 
like the 
NHS to 
know – 
catered to 
specific 
communitie
s. 
(Summer 
2022) 

Social Media sharing survey Help us improve our services for 
our disabled colleagues and 
patients in Devon and answer 
our short survey: 
http://ow.ly/mioQ50JTZ82 

897 
Instagra
m 
followers 
 
11.4k 
Twitter 
followers 
 
7.8k 
followers 
on 
Faceboo
k 

Follow up 
from talking to 
people 
attending 
Totnes Pride 
2022 

What 
would you 
like the 
NHS to 
know – 
catered to 
specific 
communitie
s. 
(Summer 
2022) 

Social Media sharing survey Thank you to all who got 
involved today at Totnes pride, 
we value speaking to the 
LGBTQ+ community and allies 
about local services. If you want 
to join the conversation and visit: 
http://ow.ly/ZMsE50Kzwl9 
#totnespride #nhsdevon 
#lgbtqpluspride 
@TorbaySDevonNHS 
@NHSDevon 

897 
Instagra
m 
followers 
 
11.4k 
Twitter 
followers 
 
7.8k 
followers 
on 
Faceboo
k 

 

Reducing health inequality 

NHS Devon replaced the clinical commissioning Group on 1 July 2022 and includes a clear 
priority to address health inequalities. The Health Inequalities and Prevention Team has built on 
the previous two years work developed within the Devon CCG and established a broad and 
ambitious programme of work including enabling actions, access to healthcare and prevention 
activity around lifestyles.  

We have consolidated our response to the COVID-19 pandemic and embedded the learning 
into our core programmes of work, this includes continuing to learn with citizens, patients, 
families and communities through ‘Community Connectors’ work, linked to CORE20+5, young 
people and adults. 

This section sets out some of our achievement during 2022/23 and points towards our 
continued actions and ambitions for the future. It also provides an overview of the emerging 
delivery structure of the agenda.  

It also provides further context to the delivery and development of the programme by 
highlighting some of the limitations, risks and issues that readers need to be aware of.  

Delivery and governance structures 

During the latter part of 2022/23 a Population Health team was established within the Medical 
Directorate. The Directorate brings together, innovation, learning and evaluation with 
Population Health Management, Health Inequalities and Prevention. This is a positive 
development in building intelligence, system learning and transformational capacity and 
capability to address health inequalities and the prevention agenda.  

http://ow.ly/mioQ50JTZ82
http://ow.ly/ZMsE50Kzwl9
https://twitter.com/hashtag/totnespride/
https://twitter.com/hashtag/nhsdevon/
https://twitter.com/hashtag/lgbtqpluspride/
https://twitter.com/TorbaySDevonNHS/
https://twitter.com/NHSDevon/
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The strategic direction and resourcing is overseen by a Population Health Steering Group, 
comprising senior representatives of key partners. The meeting is Co-Chaired by the Director of 
Public Health for Torbay and a Representative of the Voluntary and Community Sector 
Alliance.  

Translation of strategy into action and progressing the action is led by the Population Health 
Delivery Group. This group includes LCP Population Health Management Leads, VCSE 
representatives, and representatives of Public Health. The group has developed a clear action 
plan against which progress is checked.  

Local Care Partnerships have continued to develop over the course of the year, and we are 
working with our LCP colleagues to develop governance and delivery structure that maximise 
our focus on action and impact.  

Major conditions/clinical pathways – Core 20Plus 5 

We have continued to develop our focus on the “CORE20PLUS5” framework (below) which 
requires us to develop a clear focus on places and populations where the experience of health 
outcomes across a range of health conditions are poorest. Smoking is implicated in all of these 
conditions, and we are further asked to continue to develop smoking cessation support in these 
areas.  

We have spent the year mapping the pathways and identifying opportunities to impact on 
unwarranted variation. We have recruited a pool of 20 Community Connectors as part of a 
national pilot to give us lived experience insight on the context and experience of our Core20+ 
populations. The intelligence and insight we generated will help us strengthen links between 
commissioning decisions and the inequalities experienced within local communities.  

 

 

• We have been pleased to see the introduction of Core20PLUS5 for young people in 
2022/23. Like the adult version, the approach defines a target population cohort and 
identifies ‘5’ focus clinical areas requiring accelerated improvement. 
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• The approach, which initially focussed on healthcare inequalities experienced by 
adults, has now been adapted to apply to children and young people. The illustration 
below outlines the Core20PLUS5 approach for children and young people. 

• We have established a Children and Families Health Inequalities Lead post who has 
mapped the activity, health inequalities issues and improvement opportunity against 
each of the focus areas. 2023/24 will see us move to action on developing the 
opportunities to impact health inequalities and promote prevention.  

• We are developing a Community Connector pilot to mirror the adult version. This will 
help us build insight to add quality to the data picture we are developing. The insight 
generated will be ed into business planning and commissioning processes.  
 

 
 

• We have undertaken waiting list analysis for elective care against deprivation and 
ethnicity. Analysis will help us identify actions to support ‘Waiting Well’ initiatives 
across the system.  

• We are developing our learning in relation to implementation of digital technology in a 
way which mitigates against digital exclusion (a key area of interest e.g. 
cardiovascular disease prevention) 

• The One Devon Data set is now ready for SystmOne practices enabling the restart of 
our Population Health Management Programme. PHM coordinators are well 
embedded within LCPs.  

• We are progressing our utility of PHM and have identified the following pieces of 
work 
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Wider determinants – including the 4 purpose of Integrated Care 
Systems, Anchor institutions 

 

• We have established an Anchor Institution steering group to explore the potential of 
(initially) our larger public bodies to add social value through the exercising of their 
core duties. We have undertaken some preliminary mapping to make visible 
something of the scale of our Public Sector Anchors – Illustration below.  

• We will build from this mapping work, to explore current practice mapped against 
wider determinants and examples of good practice elsewhere.  

 Devon Anchor Institution Profile 

 

 

• We have delivered the Pathways needs assessment building upon work already 
undertaken by the Plymouth Local Care Partnership. We are working with a national 
homeless charity to refresh our 2010 Homeless Health Needs Assessment across 
the whole of Devon.  

• We continue to build the reach and capability of the three Trauma Networks across 
Devon, Plymouth and Torbay to built trauma informed system change. We are testing 
approaches to trauma support in Urgency and Emergency care and complex trauma 
pathways.  

Enabling systems working – support to Local Care Partnerships 
(LCPs)  

• It has been a very successful year in terms of securing external investment into our 
programme to allow us to deliver a range of targeted interventions, complementing 
ongoing targeted investment of the annual prevention funding. 

• We have developed links with academic and other partnership which has helped is to 
be successful in a number of funding bids. These include InHip, programme with the 
Academic Health Science Network. 

• We have commissioned ATTAIN to support LCPs to develop priorities around Health 
Inequalities and Prevention within the context of the developing LCP priorities. 
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• We have supported the development of the Devon Intelligence Function meeting, the 
Devon Data Dashboard – cost of living index.  

https://www.devonhealthandwellbeing.org.uk/public-health-dashboards/cost-of-living/ 

• Having achieved national Digital Inclusion Pioneer status for Devon, we have 
secured both funding and specialist support from NHSX to better understand the 
digital inequalities experienced by those living in our most rural communities. This 
work will inform the development of a Digital Inclusion Strategy for Devon, ensuring 
that we consider the needs of those less confident, or practically able, to interact with 
our services and support using digital channels. 

Healthy behaviours – prevention 

• We have secured Long Term Plan funding for 2.5 years for the treatment of tobacco 
dependence in those admitted to our acute hospitals, and women and their partners 
using our maternity services. 

• We are investing in additional staffing to build upon the Alcohol Care Team within 
Torbay Hospital, providing a five-day-a-week service to patients, with enhanced links 
to community services, mental health teams and allied health professionals. 

Access, experience, outcomes  

• We have contributed to the development of virtual wards in Devon with a particular 
focus on health inequalities and digital. Ours is the first system nationally to build a 
parallel pathway of support that draws on VSCE support to enhance people’s access,  
experience and outcomes.  
 

• We are commissioning a learning partner to support us to take a whole systems 
approach to the ‘complications of excess weight’. This will be rooted in ‘lived 
experience and help us to generate new insights and innovations of a complex, 
system challenge.  

• Data quality audit – highlighted some gaps in data fields relating to ethnicity and 
sexuality e.g. We are using the findings to develop a workforce development and 
communication plan. 

• We have undertaken a range of activity to improve health and care experiences for 
people from ethnically diverse backgrounds. The illustration below summarises this 
work.  

• We have commissioned the development of insight work as part of our Quality and 
Equality Assessment. The insights will give us a clearer understand of where we 
need to focus our attention in improving access, experience and outcomes.  

https://www.devonhealthandwellbeing.org.uk/public-health-dashboards/cost-of-living/
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The NHS Devon contribution to the delivery of the Joint Health 
and Wellbeing Strategies 

The NHS Devon geographical area covers three top tier local authorities and associated Health 

and Wellbeing Boards (HWBs), in Plymouth, Devon and Torbay.  

ICB representatives on the Health and Wellbeing Boards work with the Boards on an ongoing 
basis to ensure the priorities are being addressed. Some examples of joint working are: 
 

• During the year 2022/23, the CCG supported the Plymouth system by allocating an 
additional £5 million of funding as part of fair share distribution of funding. This targeted 
investment was allocated to the Plymouth locality of the ICB and a decision was taken to 
align this to the Plymouth Local Care Partnership (LCP). The LCP applied this funding to 
meet the programmes identified as part of the local system plan. This local Plymouth 
plan is centred around the HWBB priorities and was signed off through the Plymouth 
HWBB. 

 
The £5 million investments focused on areas/interventions that would address 
inequalities in access and in outcomes. Examples of how some of this funding was used 
include, health inclusion work with targeted investments in dental services for individuals 
with a history of addiction and investment in a network of community builders to map 
community assets that have then been linked into statutory services, social prescribing 
and used to inform future community asset development. Both of these examples have 
directly supported the delivery of both the LCP plan and the HWBB priorities. 
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HWBs have identified a vision and key priorities within their Joint Health and Wellbeing 

Strategies (JHWSs). These strategies have been used to form the basis of the locality care 

partnership (LCP) plans for each place. Local authority and health organisations along with 

other stakeholders work closely together to provide leadership for the LCPs.  

The JHWSs have also informed the development of the One Devon Partnership’s Integrated 

Care Strategy. The strategy was developed during the second half of 2022/23 by a system-

wide working group representing all health and care sectors. It sets the strategic direction for 

the system and identifies a set of strategic goals to which NHS Devon is responding through its 

first Five-year Joint Forward Plan. 

Plymouth Devon Torbay 

JHWBS Vision Statements  

 
To be one of Europe’s most 
vibrant waterfront cities 
where an outstanding 
quality of life is enjoyed by 
everyone. 
 
 
 

 
Health outcomes and health 
equality in Devon will be 
amongst the best in the 
world and will be achieved 
by Devon’s communities, 
businesses and 
organisations working in 
partnership. 
 

 
To create a healthy Torbay 
where individuals and 
communities can thrive 

JHWBS Priorities  

Delivering solutions and 
creating environments which 
address the wider 
determinants 
of health and wellbeing and 
make healthy choices 
available. 
 

Create opportunities for all-
inclusive economic growth, 
education and social mobility 
 

Working together, at scale, to 
promote good health and 
wellbeing and prevent illness 
 

Reducing health and wellbeing 
inequalities and the burden of 
chronic diseases in 
the city. 
 

Healthy, safe and strong 
communities creating 
conditions for good health and 
wellbeing where we live, work 
and learn 
 

Enable children to have the 
best start in life and address 
the inequalities in their 
outcomes 
 

Delivering the best health, 
wellbeing and social outcomes 
for all people, and reducing 
and mitigating the impact of 
poverty, especially child 
poverty. 

Focus on mental health 
building good emotional health 
and wellbeing, happiness and 
resilience 
 

Build emotional resilience in 
children and young people 

Helping ensure that children, 
young people and adults feel 
safe and confident in 
their communities, with all 
people treated with dignity and 
respect. 
 

Maintain good health for all 
supporting people to stay as 
healthy as possible for as long 
as possible 
 

Create places where people 
can live healthy and happy 
lives 

Building strong and safe 
communities in good quality 
neighbourhoods with decent 

 
Support those who are at risk 
of harm and living complex 
lives, addressing the 
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homes for all, health-promoting 
natural and built environments, 
community facilities 
and public spaces and 
accessible local services, 
alongside supporting 
restoration 
of natural habitats and 
ecosystems. 
 

underlying factors that 
increase vulnerability 

 Enabling people of all ages to 
play an active role in their 
community and engage 
with arts and culture and other 
activities to promote social 
cohesion and good mental 
health and wellbeing. 
 

 Enable people to age well 

Providing a safe, efficient, 
accessible and health-enabling 
transport network which 
supports freedom of 
movement and active travel 
and promotes low carbon 
lifestyles 
that are beneficial to physical 
and mental health. 

 Promote good mental health 

Providing vibrant, effective and 
modern education settings that 
enable children and 
young people to develop as 
active citizens in the 
community and enjoy a good 
quality 
of life in a dynamic and 
modern economy, and 
delivering quality lifelong 
learning 
which is available to everyone 
and can be tailored to quality 
employment and social 
opportunities. 

  

Ensuring people get the right 
care from the right people at 
the right time to improve 
their health, wellbeing and 
social outcomes. 

  

Making Plymouth a centre of 
clinical excellence and 
innovation to benefit the 
sustainability and growth of the 
medical and health care 
sectors in the city and to 
create education and 
employment opportunities. 
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Jane Milligan 

Accountable Officer, Chief Executive Officer   

6 September 2023 

 

Accountability report 

The Accountability Report describes how we meet key accountability requirements and embody 

best practice to comply with corporate governance norms and regulations.  

It comprises three sections: 

The Corporate Governance Report sets out how we have governed the organisation during 

the period 1 July 2022 – 31 March 2023, including membership and organisation of our 

governance structures and how they supported the achievement of our objectives. 

The Remuneration and Staff Report describes our remuneration polices for executive and 

non-executive directors, including salary and pension liability information. It also provides 

further information on our workforce, remuneration and staff policies. 

The Parliamentary Accountability and Audit Report brings together key information to 

support accountability, including a summary of fees and charges, remote contingent liabilities, 

and an audit report and certificate.  

Corporate Governance Report 

Director’s report 

The members of the NHS Devon Board took responsibility for determining the governing 
arrangements for NHS Devon, including arrangements for clinical leadership which are set out 
in the NHS Devon Constitution.   
 
Composition of Board 

The Board ensured that NHS Devon operated effectively and efficiently, with good governance. 
The Board, in line with the ICB Constitution, most recently had 16 voting members, of which 
eight were men and eight women. Our Non-Executive Members had a clear statutory role in 
acting as an independent and expert voice on the Board. All voting members of the Board 
started their tenure on 1 July 2022.  
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Sarah Wollaston 
Independent Chair  ͬ

 

Jane Milligan 
Chief Executive 
Officer 

    

    

 

Bill Shields 
Chief Finance 
Officer**  ͬ
 

 

Nigel Acheson 
Chief Medical 
Officer 

    

    

 

Liz Davenport 
NHS and 
Foundation Trust 
Partner Member ® 

 

Darryn Allcorn 
Chief Nursing 
Officer**  

     

 

Graham Clarke 
Non-Executive 
Member, Audit**  

 

Kevin Orford 
Non-Executive 
Member, Finance 
and 
Remuneration**  ͬ

    

    

 

Thandiwe Hara 
Non-Executive 
Member, People 
and Culture  ͬ

 

Professor Hisham 
Khalil, Non-
Executive Director, 
Quality**  
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Professor Sheena 
Asthana 
Non-Executive 
Member**  ͬ

 

Judy Hargadon 
Non-Executive 
Member, Primary 
Care  ͬ

    
    

 

Tracey Lee 
Local Authority 
Partner Member ® 

 

Sarah-Lou Glover 
Mental Health 
Partner Member ® 

    

    

 

Frank O’Kelly 
Primary Care 
Partner Member ® 

 

Steve Brown 
Local Authority 
Partner Member ® 

    

    

 

Anthony Fitzgerald 
Chief Delivery 
Officer* 

 

Andrew Millward 
Chief 
Communications 
and Corporate 
Affairs Officer* 
**  ͬ

    

    

 

Simon Tapley 
Chief 
Transformation and 
Strategic Planning 
Officer* 

 

Paul Renshaw 
Director of Strategic 
Workforce*  ͬ 

 
*non-voting member 
**member of Audit Committee 
ͬ member of Remuneration Committee  
® voting member of Remuneration Committee when approving non-executive remuneration   
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The above represents the membership of the NHS Devon Board as of 31 March 2023.  

The NHS Devon Board regularly invited the following individuals to attend any or all of its 
meetings as attendees who are non-voting:  

The Chief Executive of Cornwall and the Isles of Scilly Integrated Care Board and the Chair of 
the Integrated Care Partnership. 

Biographies for our Board members are available on the website: https://devon.icb.nhs.uk/nhs-
devon-board/board-members/  
 

Register of Interests 

The declaration of interests register for decision making Board members, employees and 
members of committees or subcommittees (including committees and subcommittees of the 
Board). It is published on our website: https://onedevon.org.uk/download/nhs-devon-conflict-of-
interests/  

In accordance with the NHS Devon constitution and section 140 of The National Health Service 
Act 2006, NHS Devon’s accountable officer must be informed of any interest which may lead to 
a conflict with the interests of NHS Devon and the public in relation to a decision to be made by 
NHS Devon, and that needs to be included in the Register within 28 days of the individual 
becoming aware of the potential for a conflict. If required, the register is updated regularly (at 
no more than three-monthly intervals). 

Interests that must be declared (whether such interests are those of the individual themselves 
or of a family member, close friend or other acquaintance of the individual) include: 

• Directorships, including non-executive directorships, held in private companies or PLCs  

• Ownership or part-ownership of private companies, businesses or consultancies likely or 
possibly seeking to do business with the ICB  

• Shareholdings (more than 5%) of companies in the field of health and social care  

• A position of authority in an organisation (eg, charity or voluntary organisation) in the 
field of health and social care  

• Any connection with a voluntary or other organisation contracting for NHS services  

• Research funding/grants that may be received by the individual or any organisation in 
which they have an interest or role  

• Any other role or relationship which the public could perceive would impair or otherwise 
influence the individual’s judgement or actions in their role within the ICB. 

 

Personal data related incidents 

Personal data breaches are reported to Datix via the ‘Internal Incidents’ icon available to every 
member of staff on their desktop. All incidents are reviewed, graded and investigated further by 
SCW Information Governance Services and the data protection officer (DPO).  

https://devon.icb.nhs.uk/nhs-devon-board/board-members/
https://devon.icb.nhs.uk/nhs-devon-board/board-members/
https://onedevon.org.uk/download/nhs-devon-conflict-of-interests/
https://onedevon.org.uk/download/nhs-devon-conflict-of-interests/
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During the period of 1 July 2022 – 31 March 2023, NHS Devon reported 134 internal incidents. 
The majority of incidents were graded as ‘green’ and therefore considered as minor incidents 
with no/low risk.  

There were two incidents reported to the Independent Commissioner’s Office (ICO) - one in 
November 2022 and another in February 2023. Both incidents have been closed with no further 
action taken from the ICO. Necessary actions have been considered and put in place.   

Slavery Act  

NHS Devon fully supports the Government’s objectives to eradicate modern slavery and human 
trafficking but does not meet the requirements for producing an annual Slavery and Human 
Trafficking Statement as set out in the Modern Slavery Act 2015. 

 

Statement of Accountable Officer’s Responsibilities  

Under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended), NHS England has directed each 
Integrated Care Board to prepare for each financial year a statement of accounts in the form 
and on the basis set out in the Accounts Direction. The accounts are prepared on an accruals 
basis and must give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of NHS Devon ICB and of its 
income and expenditure, Statement of Financial Position and cash flows for the financial year. 

In preparing the accounts, the Accountable Officer is required to comply with the requirements 
of the Government Financial Reporting Manual and in particular to: 

• Observe the Accounts Direction issued by NHS England, including the relevant 
accounting and disclosure requirements, and apply suitable accounting policies on a 
consistent basis; 

• Make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis; 

• State whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the Government 
Financial Reporting Manual have been followed, and disclose and explain any 
material departures in the accounts; and, 

• Prepare the accounts on a going concern basis; and 

• Confirm that the Annual Report and Accounts as a whole is fair, balanced and 
understandable and take personal responsibility for the Annual Report and Accounts 
and the judgements required for determining that it is fair, balanced and 
understandable. 

The National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) states that each Integrated Care Board 
shall have an Accountable Officer and that Officer shall be appointed by NHS England. 

NHS England has appointed the Chief Executive Officer to be the Accountable Officer of NHS 
Devon ICB. The responsibilities of an Accountable Officer, including responsibility for the 
propriety and regularity of the public finances for which the Accountable Officer is answerable, 
for keeping proper accounting records (which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time 
the financial position of the Integrated Care Board and enable them to ensure that the accounts 
comply with the requirements of the Accounts Direction), and for safeguarding the NHS Devon 
ICB assets (and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud 
and other irregularities), are set out in the Accountable Officer Appointment Letter, the National 
Health Service Act 2006 (as amended), and Managing Public Money published by the 
Treasury. 
 

As the Accountable Officer, I have taken all the steps that I ought to have taken to make myself 
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that NHS Devon’s auditors are aware 
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of that information. So far as I am aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the 
auditors are unaware. 

 

 

Jane Milligan 

Accountable Officer, Chief Executive Officer   

6 September 2023 
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Annual governance statement  

Introduction and context 

NHS Devon Integrated Care Board (ICB) is a body corporate established by NHS 
England on 1 July 2022 under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended). 
 
The ICB’s statutory functions are set out under the National Health Service Act 2006 
(as amended).   
 
NHS Devon’s general function is arranging the provision of services for persons for 
the purposes of the health service in England.  NHS Devon is, in particular, required 
to arrange for the provision of certain health services to such extent as it considers 
necessary to meet the reasonable requirements of its local population.   
 
Between 1 July 2022 and 31 March 2023, the Integrated Care Board was not subject 
to any directions from NHS England issued under Section 14Z21 of the National 
Health Service Act 2006 (as amended). 
 
Since 13 July 2022 NHS Devon has been under segment 4 of the NHS Oversight 
Framework. This means NHS Devon has been under the national Recovery Support 
Programme that has provided intensive support to the ICB. At the same time as 
helping to address the specific issues that have triggered mandated intensive 
support, NHS England have considered long-term solutions and any structural 
issues affecting NHS Devon’s ability to ensure high quality, sustainable services for 
the public. 
 
NHS Devon improvement areas for 2022-23 are: 
 

• Financial performance including addressing the system’s long-term deficit. 
• Joint ownership and delivery of a coherent strategy that secures 

sustainable clinical services and improved performance. 
• Whole-system approach and collaboration across Devon. 

 
The system has agreed robust recovery plans, with clear oversight by a Strategic 
Recovery Board.       
 
Scope of responsibility 

As Accountable Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of 
internal control that supports the achievement of NHS Devon ICB’s policies, aims 
and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets for which I am 
personally responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me in 
Managing Public Money. I also acknowledge my responsibilities as set out under the 
National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) and in my NHS Devon ICB 
Accountable Officer Appointment Letter. 
 
I am responsible for ensuring that NHS Devon ICB is administered prudently and 
economically and that resources are applied efficiently and effectively, safeguarding 
financial propriety and regularity. I also have responsibility for reviewing the 
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effectiveness of the system of internal control within the ICB as set out in this 
governance statement. 
 
Governance arrangements and effectiveness 

The ICB is a statutory body with the general function of arranging for the provision of 

services for the purposes of the health service in England and is an NHS body for 

the purposes of the 2006 Act.  

The membership and attendance record for the Board and its committees, together 
with highlights of their work are at Appendix 1, with the Terms of Reference being 
contained within the Governance Handbook. 
 
The Board has six committees reporting to it. This includes two statutory committees 
being the Audit and Risk Committee and the Remuneration and Internal ICB 
Workforce Committee, and an additional four committees, namely the Quality and 
Performance Committee, Finance Committee, Primary Care Commissioning 
Transitional Committee and the People and Culture Committee.   
 
I confirm that NHS Devon has maintained a strong focus on effective governance. 
An internal review of governance during 2022-23 has resulted in a number of 
changes to the Board’s committees. Changes made include: 
 
For the NHS Devon (ICB) Board it was agreed to: 

- move public meetings to be held every other month while private meetings to 
continue monthly; and 

- move Board meetings to the first week of the month to enable more timely 
financial reporting.  

-  
Changes to the Committees of the Board include: 

- Audit and Risk Committee meet no more than five times per annum 
- People and Culture Committee to meet six times per annum 
- Finance/ Quality and Primary Care Commissioning Committees continue 

monthly 
- Finance Committee to oversee performance and will be known as Finance 

and Performance Committee. 
- Quality Committee will review its terms of reference to ensure it maintains 

oversight on quality metrics and at the same time assess the impact of 
performance on patient safety and experience. 

 
Further consideration has been given to establishing a Population Health Committee.  
 
The effectiveness of the Board and its Committees will be undertaken as part of the 
NHS England Governance and Partnership Review in 2023/24.   
 
UK Corporate Governance Code 

NHS Bodies are not required to comply with the UK Code of Corporate Governance.  
 

https://onedevon.org.uk/download/nhs-devon-icb-governance-handbook/?hilite=governance+handbook
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NHS Devon ICB reports its corporate governance arrangements by drawing on best 
practice available, including those aspects of the UK Corporate Governance Code it 
considers to be relevant to the ICB and best practice. This governance statement is 
therefore intended to demonstrate the ICB’s compliance with the principles set out in 
the Code.  
 
Discharge of Statutory Functions 

On 1 July 2022 NHS Devon was established and took on its statutory powers and 
duties and powers conferred on it by the National Health Service Act 2006 (as 
amended) and other associated legislature and regulations. As a result, I can confirm 
that the ICB is clear about the legislative requirements associated with each of the 
statutory functions for which it is responsible, including any restrictions on delegation 
of those functions.  
 
Responsibility for each duty and power has been clearly allocated to a lead  
Executive Director. Responsibility for each duty and power is clearly outlined in the 
ICBs scheme of reservation and delegation, within the financial limits policy 
delegations are allocated to a lead Director. Directorates have confirmed that their 
structures provide the necessary capability and capacity to undertake all of the ICB’s 
statutory duties.  

 
Risk management arrangements and effectiveness  

NHS Devon is committed to a strategy that minimises risks to the organisation, staff 
and patients and stakeholders through a comprehensive system of internal controls, 
while providing maximum potential for flexibility, innovation and best practice in 
delivery of its strategic objectives.  
 
NHS Devon works to all applicable legislation and NHS guidance, and where risk 
forms a part of the ICB’s work, this is assessed and recorded on the risk register. In 
November 2022 the Board undertook a review of its strategic risks and risk appetite, 
with the resulting Board Assurance Framework (BAF) reported to the public at its 
meeting in March 2023. Starting from February 2023 each assurance committee now 
receives a report on Board assurance risks, relating to each committee’s area of 
responsibility.    
 
NHS Devon’s approach to risk management has been assessed by internal audit as 
limited and work is underway to strengthen its approach through the introduction of a 
single risk management system to strengthen and streamline the management 
process.  
 
The ICB maintains a corporate risk register which reports on all significant risks, 
scoring 15 and above. Each assurance committee received reports from the 
corporate risk register on those relating to each committee’s area of responsibility.  
 
A comprehensive review was undertaken in February 2023 on all risks held on the 
corporate risk register. The results were reported to the executive team and to the 
assurance committees to ensure oversight and agreement on all the amendments.  
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Capacity to Handle Risk  

All NHS Devon staff are involved in risk management – the Executive Director has 
responsibility to approve risks that go onto the ICB corporate risk register; senior 
managers as risk-owners have responsibility for ensuring that risks are operationally 
managed, and, administrative staff, such as risk co-ordinators, record and update 
controls, assurances and action plans on the team risk register. 
 
NHS Devon identified 12 new corporate risks and closed a total of seven risks 
between 1 July 2022 and 31 March 2023 to give a total of 36 open corporate risks 
remaining as at the end of this reporting period.   
 
Corporate risks are reported to the Senior Executive Team and assurance sought 
from the Assurance Committees prior to a summary being presented to the Board 
through the Chair’s report of these Committees. The NHS Devon Board papers can 
be found on the ICB website - https://devon.icb.nhs.uk/nhs-devon-board/meetings-
and-papers/ 
   
Guidance on risk management and frequency of training is contained in the NHS 
Devon risk management framework.  The Board is assured that risk management is 
effective by the Audit and Risk Committee. The Audit and Risk Committee receives 
regular updates on the way in which risk is being managed across the ICB and 
reports on this discussion as part of the Committee’s Chair’s Report to the Board.   
 
 
Risk Assessment  

At its March 2023 meeting, the NHS Devon Board agreed an assurance framework 
that reports the 12 strategic risks against the 14 strategic objectives as shown below.    
 

• If the Anchor Organisation programme of work is not part of a more strategic 
plan then there will be a lack of focus to address the social determinants of 
health. As a consequence the partner and community organisations will 
become disengaged and the ICB will fail to achieve this objective. 

 

• If there is insufficient capacity and capability in NHS Devon to undertake the 
enabling work with partners (Public Health and locality teams) then the ICB 
will not be able to articulate the programmes of work needed, and associated 
governance arrangements, to support the objective of reducing health 
inequalities. The consequence will be that health inequalities will continue 
across Devon and worsen in some areas. 

 

• If NHS Devon is not proactive in its approach and priorities around population 
health management and prevention then it will not successfully drive the shift 
to prevention. This will impact on the system’s ability to successfully target 
interventions at those groups most at risk, prevent ill-health and address 
health inequalities. 

 

• If the system does not have robust recovery plans, that are continually 
monitored for impact, then the ICB will continually fail to ensure timely access 

https://devon.icb.nhs.uk/nhs-devon-board/meetings-and-papers/
https://devon.icb.nhs.uk/nhs-devon-board/meetings-and-papers/
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to both elective and unplanned care. This will result in poor patient 
experience, failure to ensure the best possible physical and mental health 
outcomes and resulting quality of life; generating inappropriate and inefficient 
use of resource in primary care and a and loss of confidence from the 
community and regulators. 

 

• If NHS Devon does not support the post-Covid recovery and transformation of 
general medical, dental, pharmaceutical and optical practice then Devon will 
not have adequate Primary Care Services.  The consequence will be 
increased population morbidity, increased health inequalities and increased 
pressure across other parts of the health and care system. 

 

• If NHS Devon does not improve access to mental health, learning disability 
and neurodiversity services then patients will continue to experience 
significant waits for specialist care which means more people are likely to 
access healthcare when in crisis. Consequence will be a worsening in mental 
health conditions leading to poor health outcomes. This may lead to an 
increased population morbidity, increased health inequalities and increased 
pressure across other parts of the health and care system. 

 

• If NHS Devon does not work with its partners to prioritise resources on how 
we support people and communities to stay healthy and live independently 
the consequence will be that we will always be in a state of crisis 
management, which will lead to poorer outcomes for the population. 

 

• If NHS Devon fails to obtain commitment from all partners in the ICS to 
achieve financial balance. This will undermine our ability to move greater 
resource to prevention and our ability to exit segment 4 of the NHS Oversight 
Framework. 

 

• If NHS Devon does not produce an agreed system wide workforce strategy 
that meets the health and care needs of the population, is affordable and can 
be delivered by system partners, then it will continue to have high costs and 
be unable to ensure resilient, safe, and effective services. As a consequence, 
the ICB will continue to fail to meet statutory constitutional targets. 

 

• If NHS Devon fails to resource and work collaboratively towards the common 
priorities presented in the Digital Strategy we will not be able to maximise the 
benefits afforded by the advances in digital and data, including the ability to 
identify and tackle health inequalities. 

 

• If NHS Devon does not support the co-ordination of carbon reduction across 
the ICS and embed the principles for Healthier Planet, Healthier People then it 
will not create a greener, sustainable health service in a way that contributes 
to the NHS Target of reaching net zero by 2040 (for emissions it controls 
directly and by 2045 for those it can influence (such as the supply chain). The 
consequence will be that we fail in our responsibilities to tackle the impact of 
the climate emergency on the health of the population and for future 
generations. 
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The detail of how these risks are being managed, including mitigations and 
assurances, are detailed within the BAF and will be updated on a quarterly basis and 
presented to the Board.   
 
Other sources of assurance  

Internal Control Framework 
 
A system of internal control is the set of processes and procedures in place in the 
ICB to ensure it delivers its policies, aims and objectives.  It is designed to identify 
and prioritise the risks, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the 
impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and 
economically. 
 
The system of internal control allows risk to be managed to a reasonable level rather 
than eliminating all risk; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute 
assurance of effectiveness. 
 
The external auditors provide me with their opinion through their Auditor’s Annual 
Report.  Internal audit has provided limited assurance in their Head of Internal Audit 
Opinion (included at the end of this section of the report). 
 
The systems of internal control related to risk management are monitored by the 
Governance Team to ensure regular reviews of risk are carried out and reporting any 
breaches should they occur. The risk reports for the Board, Audit and Risk 
Committee, Quality and Performance Committee, Finance Committee, Primary Care 
Commissioning Transitional Committee and ICB Executive Committee are produced 
by the Governance Team. Between 1 July 2022 and 31 March 2023 there were 
occasions when risk reports were not produced for Committees, namely in 
November and December 2022.  Regular reporting has resumed and has been in 
place since January 2023 
 
Annual audit of conflicts of interest management  
 
The revised statutory guidance on managing conflicts of interest (published June 
2016) requires commissioners to undertake an annual internal audit of conflicts of 
interest management. To support ICBs to undertake this task, NHS England has 
published a template audit framework.  
 
Since its establishment on 1 July 2022 NHS Devon has maintained good oversight 
on managing its conflicts of interest and this was acknowledged in the Internal Audit 
satisfactory assurance on the design and operation of the arrangements and controls 
the ICB has in place to manage conflicts of interest.     
 
I can confirm there have been no conflict of interest breaches reported between 1 
July 2022 and 31 March 2023. 
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Data Quality 
 
The Board, in addition to its committees and sub-committees (working groups), 
receives information provided by the ICB business intelligence team that is sourced 
from national mandatory returns and NHS Digital information. This data is subject to 
data quality checks from providers prior to submission, from NHS Digital as part of 
the national collation process and from the ICB as part of its data management 
processes.  
 
Information is also sourced directly from local providers, and this is validated by the 
ICB business intelligence team on receipt, as well as against national 
information/guidance when that becomes available.  NHS Devon works with 
providers through oversight meetings to understand both performance and any data 
quality issues.   
 
Information Governance  
 
The NHS Information Governance Framework sets the processes and procedures by 
which the NHS handles information about patients and employees, in particular 
personal identifiable information.  The NHS Information Governance Framework is 
supported by an data security and protection toolkit and the annual submission 
process provides assurances to NHS Devon, other organisations and to individuals 
that personal information is dealt with legally, securely, efficiently and effectively. 
 
The Data Security and Protection Toolkit (DSPT) submission date for 2021/22 was 
30 June 2022. The Data Protection Officer (DPO), following approval from both the 
Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO) and Caldicott Guardian, submitted its full 
2021/2022 submission in June 2022 as ‘Standards Met’. For 22/23 the ICBs DSPT 
has moved to a category 1 toolkit which is the same as provider Trusts. A baseline 
submission was published on the 23 February 2023 and the final submission will be 
published before the end of June 2023.  
 
NHS Devon records all risks relating to data security on a risk register and has taken 
steps to ensure that all data is held securely, as mandated by the UK Data 
Protection Act and NHS requirements. This includes the risk identified due to the 
increase in home-working and shared working premises with non-ICB individuals. 
 
As a result of continued improvements for safer working, NHS Devon has further 
embedded staff training and continues to use the NHS Digital and e-Learning for 
Health Data Security Awareness training modules via the Electronic Staff Record 
portal and this continues to form part of the annual mandatory training for all staff.  
NHS Devon regularly reviews its processes in relation to fair processing, subject 
access requests, incident reporting and investigation, and updates its Privacy Notice 
at least every six months, this now includes a section on Covid-19.  
 
The Internal Incidents portal available via the icon on every staff member’s desktop 
permits direct and quick access to Datix for the reporting of incidents, breaches and 
near misses. It provides a consistent approach for all staff for reporting whether that 
be data protection or for example, health and safety. The ongoing reviews and staff 
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engagement ensured awareness surrounding information risk culture throughout the 
organisation.  
 
We place high importance on ensuring there are robust information governance 
systems and processes in place to help protect patient and corporate 
information.  We have established a data protection framework and have data 
protection processes and procedures in line with the DSPT.   
 
NHS Devon routinely reports any untoward incidents involving personal data to its 
Data Protection Steering Group which meets every quarter and reports are produced 
for the Audit and Risk Committee. Two incidents were reported to the Information 
Commissioner’s Office (ICO) during the period covered by this report.  Having 
reviewed the incidents the ICO confirmed that no further action would be taken.   
 
Business Critical Models 
 
An appropriate framework and environment are in place, in line with best practice 
recommendations of the 2013 MacPherson review, to provide quality assurance of 
business-critical models – including service planning and provision, budget-setting 
and allocations. This framework is informed by the role of the Audit and Risk 
Committee and the internal audit programme to review systems of internal control to 
identify areas for improvement. 
 
As Accountable Officer, I receive assurance through service auditor reports that 
relevant controls are in place and have been operating throughout the year. NHS 
England undertakes a quarterly assurance review which covers the output from 
these business-critical models. All business-critical models have been identified and 
information about quality assurance processes for those models has been provided 
to Audit and Risk Committee. 
 
Third party assurances 
 
The following third party assurance reports are received from the following 
organisations: 

• ISAE Third Party Assurance Report in respect of NHS Shared Business 
Services – Finance and Accounting Services 

• ISAE Third Party Assurance Report in respect of NHS General 
Practitioners Extraction and Processing of General Practitioner Data 
Services  

• ISAE Third Party Assurance Report in respect of NHS Business Services 
Authority – Prescription Payments 

• ISAE Third Party Assurance Report in respect of NHS Business Services 
Authority – Dental Payments  

• ISAE Third Party Assurance report in respect of IT General Controls in 
respect of the Electronic Staff Record (ESR) 

 
These are Service Auditor Reports which typically set out the following: 

• Respective responsibilities in the Service end-to-end process;  
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• A high level description of the governance and assurance arrangements in 
place at the Service Organisation including arrangements for effective risk 
management and assurance; 

• A high level description of the Service control environment;  

• An assertion by the Service Organisation management regarding the 
design of internal controls over the process; and,  

• A low level description of the Service's control objectives and supporting 
key controls. Service Auditor Reports are an internationally recognised 
method for Service Organisations to provide details of controls and their 
operation in a specified period to their clients and are prepared to 
internationally recognised standards (typically ISAE 3000 and 3402).  

 
For this reporting period, a qualified opinion was given for three of the Third Party 
Assurance Reports as whilst the control objectives stated in the description were 
suitably designed to provide reasonable assurance that the control objectives would 
be achieved and that they had operated effectively, the exceptions set out below 
were identified.    
 

Third Party Report Exception 

NHS Business Services 
Authority – Prescription 
Payments 

 

Controls relating to periodic review of user access to applications 
did not operate effectively; and in a number of instances the 
controls relating to timely removal of leavers' access to 
applications and the network did not operate effectively.  

General Practitioners Extraction 
and Processing of General 
Practitioner Data services  

 

In a number of instances controls relating to approval of new user 
access to DPS and removal of leavers from GPDC, DPS and PDS 
did not operate effectively and, in addition, controls were not in 
place to provide appropriate segregation of duties between the 
production and the development environments of the GPDC 
application 

NHS Business Services 
Authority – Dental Payments 

In number of instances, the controls relating to timely removal of 
leavers' access to applications and the network were not 
operating effectively. 

 
Actions have been agreed to address the exceptions identified in respect of the 
Prescription Payments and Dental Payments report whilst the issues identified in 
respect of General Practitioner Data have already been addressed.   
 
In drawing a conclusion on the control environment at the end of this Governance 
Statement, I recognise there have been a number of reported deficiencies in controls 
in 2022-23.  Therefore, I am unable to conclude that there are no significant 
deficiencies in control. 
 
Control Issues 
 
During the year, three significant control issues faced NHS Devon, two of which were 
identified in the January 2022 Governance Statement return.  The first issue related 
to the challenges in appointing an external auditor, which could have a significant 
impact on the timeline for the auditing of the ICB’s accounts.  This issue was 
escalated to NHS England and NHS Devon has now appointed external Auditors. 
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The second issue was the System Oversight Framework assessment of NHS Devon 
at level 4 which is the most significant level given by NHS England.  
 
The final issue relates to a review undertaken by NHS Devon ICB’s internal auditors, 
Audit South West in May 2023 in relation to the circumstances surrounding the 
payment of two invoices which did not appear to have gone through expected 
procurement processes.   
  
The review, which is in the process of being finalised, highlighted a number of areas 
of concern and control failures, not only with regards to compliance with financial and 
governance arrangements in this case, but also in relation to a lack of consistent 
oversight and monitoring of service delivery, including adequate commissioning and 
due diligence of non-framework suppliers.  
  
Work continues to finalise the review and determine the most appropriate approach 
to addressing its findings.  To date: 
  

• Action has been with regard to the behaviour of specific individuals who have 
not complied with agreed governance arrangements 

• A further independent review is being established in relation to relevant 
systems and processes (i.e. financial and procurement procedures, and 
contract performance management arrangements).  

• Spot checks are being undertaken in relation to compliance with relevant 
systems and processes (for example the Single Tender Waivers). 

 
NHS Devon has received a limited assurance opinion by its Internal Auditors, as 
while it was considered that there were system and processes in place these were 
not always applied consistently.  Areas of concern highlighted included: 
 

• The time taken to formally approve a Board Assurance Framework and 
inconsistencies around Corporate Risk reporting.  The Board Assurance 
Framework how now been approved and Corporate Risks are being reported 
to each meeting of the Board’s Committees. A Risk Manager has now been 
appointed to ensure that risk management arrangements are consistently 
applied and oversee the introduction of a single risk management system. 

• The dependence on manual procedures for maintaining the ICB’s Register of 
Interests and how this resulted in reduced compliance when there was 
reduced capacity within the Governance Team.  In response, an electronic 
Conflicts of Interest system is being procured. With regard to staff declaring 
private business ownership, while the overall process enables potential 
conflicts to be managed appropriately, it was recommended that the 
procurement and contracting teams should access the central Register of 
Interests as part of their process. 

• While there were appropriate Business Continuity policies and arrangements 
at an organisational level, there were areas identified for improvement 
regarding EPRR training and the testing of Business Continuity Plan.  Work 
is underway to manage these areas more effectively going forward. 

• Overall, NHS Devon has an appropriate system of controls to manage cyber 
security related risks, operated both internally, and via the IT services 
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provided by DELT. However, there are areas where improvement could be 
made/clarification of service provision is needed. 

• Overall sound financial controls have been designed and are in operation 
within all of the key financial systems reviewed, as set out below, and are 
documented across a suite of financial procedures. Levels of aged debt are 
managed. However, the review of the completed self-assessment against 
Financial Sustainability checks reported that on average most areas 
received an assessment score of requires action with the key areas of 
improvement focused on being business and financial planning, budget 
monitoring, forecasting, training and financial management. 

 
In addition, a review of the NHS Devon’s preparedness for the Delegation of 
Pharmacy, Ophthalmic and Dental Services from 1 April 2023.  While it was 
confirmed that there are appropriate governance arrangements in place to complete 
the Safe Delegation Checklist required by NHSE, there are significant risks involved 
with taking on these services.  These risks have now been included within the 
Corporate Risk Register. 
 

Review of economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use 
of resources 

The Board has responsibility for ensuring that NHS Devon has appropriate 
arrangements in place to manage its functions economically, efficiently and 
effectively. The Board makes sure that NHS Devon operates within the corporate 
governance framework (i.e. its standing orders, scheme of delegations and standing 
financial instructions) and has established an Audit and Risk Committee to assist the 
Board in delivering its responsibilities for the conduct of public business, and the 
stewardship of funds under its control; a Finance Committee to provide a 
performance framework that proactively manages the ICB’s financial agenda. 
 
The Quality and Performance Committee supports a single framework of governance 
that enables NHS Devon and its Local Care Partnerships (LCP)s to collaboratively 
drive improvement to quality, delivery, and outcomes against each of the dimensions 
of quality set out in the ‘Shared Commitment to Quality’ and enshrined in the Health 
and Care Act 2022.   
 
In addition, there are Quality, equality, inclusion assessments (QEIA) and local key 
performance indicators in relation to quality and performance.  
 
The Audit and Risk Committee provides assurance to the Board that an appropriate 
system of internal control is in place to ensure that:  

• Business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards  

• Public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for  

• Affairs are managed to secure economic, efficient and effective use of 
resources 

• Reasonable steps are taken to prevent and detect fraud and other 
irregularities  
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NHS Devon has a procurement policy that seeks to be an effective way to help 
ensure quality and value for money requirements are achieved; helping the ICB 
commission the right services to improve the lives of those who live in Devon. 
 
NHS Devon uses internal audit functions to confirm controls are operating 
effectively, to provide independent assurance and advise on areas of improvement. 
Audit report findings are discussed in detail at Audit and Risk Committee and 
summarised in the Head of Internal Audit Opinion Statement. 
 

Delegation of functions 

NHS Devon has delegated responsibility for commissioning local primary care 
services. The Board receives assurance on the discharge of these functions through 
the Primary Care Commissioning Transition Committee and receives regular reports 
from the Committee’s Chair and via the Board Assurance Framework.  
 
An internal audit review of Primary Care Commissioning undertaken in respect of the 
reporting period resulted in a “Satisfactory” rating as previously agreed 
actions/controls had been implemented and continue to operate as part of the ICB’s 
Primary Care Commissioning arrangements, and that these controls are operating 
effect   
 
As referred to previously, with effect from 1 April 2023 will also have delegated 
responsibility for commissioning Pharmacy, Ophthalmic and Dental Services.  As 
with local primary care services, assurance on the discharge of these functions will 
be reported through the Primary Care Commissioning Transition Committee to the 
Board via regular reports from the Committee’s Chair.  In addition, in light of the 
internal review undertaken in respect of the delegation of these services, a risk is 
now included within the Corporate Risk Register. 
 
As with the other six ICBs across the South West, Devon jointly exercises its 
commissioning functions in relation to emergency ambulance services via the 
Ambulance Joint Commissioning Committee (AJCC) which functions as a corporate 
decision-making body for the management and exercise of these commissioning 
functions. The AJCC reports into the Dorset ICB, as lead commissioning 
organisation, twice yearly.  The first report presents the annual workplan with the 
second being a year-end performance report.  Regular reporting with regard to 
ambulance performance is included within the IQPR which is presented to the 
Finance Committee, Quality and Performance Committee and to the ICB Board. 
 
Delegated functions are set out in the articles of the constitution, scheme of 
reservation and delegation or the standing orders. 
 
No control issues have been raised by the auditors. 
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Compliance with NHS England Core Standards for 
Emergency Preparedness, Resilience and Response 
(EPRR) 

NHS Devon reported its compliance against the NHS England Core Standards for 
EPRR to the Board 15 March 2023.  NHS Devon was assessed as Substantially 
Compliant. Papers can be found here for full details: 
https://onedevon.org.uk/documents/ 

Counter Fraud arrangements 

Audit South West Assurance and their accredited Counter Fraud Specialists provide 
an independent counter-fraud service to NHS Devon.  
 
NHS Devon has a Counter Fraud, Bribery and Corruption policy which deals with the 
specific issues in the title.  The ICB’s policies relating to Conflicts of Interest, Gifts 
and Hospitality, and its Disciplinary policy link to Counter Fraud.  
Additionally, appropriate policies are reviewed throughout the year for Fraud 
resilience and, where applicable, are updated to protect the ICB from economic 
crime and wrongdoing. 
 
The Audit and Risk Committee receives regular reports from the Counter Fraud team 
and provides assurance to the Board that an appropriate system of internal control is 
in place to ensure reasonable steps are taken to prevent and detect fraud and other 
irregularities. 
 
Training and awareness raising has included: 

• A series of webinars for ICB Finance Officers for International Fraud 
Awareness Week (IFAW), 13-19 November 2022.  These sessions 
concentrated on Bank Mandate Fraud and, using real life examples, 
highlighted the ‘finite details’ in fraudulent communications.   

• A briefing with regard to Bank Mandate Fraud, tailored for finance and payroll 
staff.  Following this briefing, procedures have been updated by the Finance 
Team and are reviewed by the Counter Fraud Team.  

• Publishing a “Fraud Counts” newsletter focusing on cyber-enabled scams. 

• Notifying the Finance Team of the Fraud Prevention Notice (FPN) CFO Cyber 
Enabled Mandate Fraud and foreign payments to ensure that the 
recommended safeguards are in place at the ICB.   

• Alerting finance and procurement staff of the Fraud Prevention Notice 
regarding fraudsters impersonating suppliers and sending invoices for goods 
(often clinical consumables) which were never ordered and, in many cases, 
never supplied.  The ICB is in turn alerting and advising GP colleagues.      

 
In addition, the NHS Devon Audit and Risk Committee receives an annual report 
against each of the Standards for Commissioners.  Part of this report includes the 
Trust’s submission of its “Counter Fraud Functional Standard Review” (CFFSR) to 
the NHS Counter Fraud Authority.  The 2022/23 CFFSR assessed NHS Devon with 
an overall rating of Green.    
 

https://onedevon.org.uk/documents/
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No investigations, losses or significant control issues were reported between 1 July 
2022 and 31 March 2023.     
 

Head of Internal Audit Opinion   

Following completion of the planned audit work for the period 1 July 2022 – 31 
March 2023 for the ICB, the Head of Internal Audit issued an independent and 
objective opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the ICB’s system of risk 
management, governance and internal control. The Head of Internal Audit concluded 
that: 
 
“My overall opinion on the internal control, governance and risk management 
arrangements for the ICB is limited assurance, as although the ICB has sound 
financial systems covering the ledger, weaknesses in the design, and inconsistent 
application of controls put the achievement of some of the organisation’s objectives 
at risk, namely the Board Assurance Framework and the Risk Management 
processes have not been in place and operational between 1 July 2022 and March 
2023 and there are other areas where improvements are required as set out below.  
 
The opinion includes a draft report. The assurance rating for the draft report will not 
change on finalising the reports and as such will not change the overall opinion 
statement.” 
 
During the period, Internal Audit issued the following audit reports:  
 

Area of Audit Level of Assurance Given  

High Level Financial Controls Satisfactory 

Managing Conflicts of Interest Satisfactory 

Cyber / IT Security Satisfactory 

Board Assurance Framework and Risk 
Management 

Design - Satisfactory / Application - Limited 

Business Continuity / Emergency Planning Satisfactory 

Primary Care Commissioning Satisfactory 

Payroll Satisfactory (draft) 

DSPT (Information Governance) Moderate (NHS Digital rating) 

ICB Preparedness for the Delegation of 
Pharmaceutical, Ophthalmic and Dental 
(POD) Services 

Limited 

Management of Staff Declarations 
Regarding Private Business Ownership 

Satisfactory 

The issues identified in these reports are set out at the “Internal Controls” section of 
this Annual Governance Statement.   

Review of the effectiveness of governance, risk management and internal 
control 
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My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by the 
work of the internal auditors and executive managers within NHS Devon who have 
responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal control 
framework. I have drawn on performance information available to me. The absence 
of external auditors has been raised as a key issue and the appointment of KPMG 
should provide NHS Devon with an important view on the effectiveness of 
governance and internal controls, on completion of their audit. 
 
Our assurance framework provides me with evidence that the effectiveness of 
controls that manage risks to NHS Devon achieving its principles objectives have 
been reviewed.  
 
I have been advised on the implications of the result of this review by:  

• The Board 

• The Audit and Risk Committee 

• The Quality and Patient Experience Committee 

• The Finance and Performance Committee 

• Internal Audit 

• External Audit 
 

Conclusion 

In line with the HIAO I can confirm that there is limited assurance for the internal 
control, governance and risk management arrangements for NHS Devon.  Whilst 
NHS Devon has sound financial systems covering the ledger, weaknesses in the 
design, and inconsistent application of controls put the achievement of some of the 
organisation’s objectives at risk, namely the Board Assurance Framework and the 
Risk Management processes have not been in place and operational between 1 July 
2022 and March 2023 
 
 

 
Jane Milligan 
Accountable Officer, Chief Executive Officer  
NHS Devon Integrated Care Board      
6 September 2023 
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Remuneration and Staff Report  

Remuneration report  

Remuneration and Internal ICB Workforce Committee  

The Remuneration and Internal ICB Workforce Committee fulfils the remuneration 
committee functions required by statute, principally to determine remuneration, fees 
and allowances payable to NHS Devon staff, and make recommendations to the 
board. As well as this, the committee deals with remuneration and terms of service in 
relation to the board and the executive team.   
   
The committee consists of both executive members and non-executive members of 
the board. The quorum is a minimum of three of the non-executive members, 
including the Chair or Vice Chair. The committee is advised by the associate director 
of human resources and organisational development and, where required, the chair 
and the accountable officer of the ICB.   

   
Pay ratio information  

Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the total 
remuneration of the highest-paid director / member in their organisation against the 
25th percentile, median and 75th percentile of remuneration of the organisation’s 
workforce. Total remuneration of the employee at the 25th percentile, median and 
75th percentile is further broken down to disclose the salary component. 

The banded annual remuneration of the highest paid director / member in NHS 
Devon ICB in the reporting period 1st July – 31st March 2022/2023 was £197,500 
(£195,000-£200,000). This salary is in line with the executive salary scale for 
Integrated Care Boards. 

The relationship to the remuneration of the organisation's workforce is disclosed in 
the below table. 

2022/23 25th percentile Median pay ratio 75th percentile pay 

ratio 

Total remuneration 

(£) 

26,282 41,659 56,164 

Salary component 

of total 

remuneration (£) 

26,282 41,659 56,164 

Pay ratio 

information 

7.51 4.74 3.52 
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This was 7.51 times the 25th percentile of remuneration of the workforce, which was 
£26,282. This was 4.74 times the median remuneration of the workforce, which was 
£41,659. This was 3.52 times the 75th percentile of remuneration of the workforce, 
which was £56,164. 

During the reporting period 2022/23, no employees received remuneration in excess 
of the highest-paid director/member. Remuneration ranged from £14,923 to 
£197,000. 

Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance-related pay, 
benefits-in-kind, but not severance payments. It does not include employer pension 
contributions and the cash equivalent transfer value of pensions. 

Policy on the remuneration of senior managers    

Some senior managers were on the NHS Agenda for Change framework, while 
others were in line with the Department of Health Pay Framework for very senior 
managers.    
 
The remuneration of senior managers was reviewed annually in conjunction with 
advice and guidance received from NHS Partners and the Department of Health and 
included review of the assessment of performance during the relevant financial 
period including achievement of specific performance targets.   
  
All board members had contracts of employment with the ICB, with appropriate 
notice periods built into each contract. This is in line with guidance received from the 
Department of Health and HM Revenue and Customs.   
  
Redundancy clauses in each contract matched the provisions in the Agenda for 
Change contract of employment.    
Senior manager performance related pay  

Devon ICB does not have performance related pay.  
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Remuneration of Very Senior Managers 

Senior manager remuneration (including salary and pension entitlements) 
July-March 2022/23 (subject to audit) 

Name and Title Note 

July-March 2022/23 

(a) 
Salary 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

(b) 
Expense 
payments 
(taxable) 

to nearest 
£100 

(c) 
Performance 

pay and 
bonuses 
(bands of 

£5,000) 

(d) 
Long term 

performance 
pay and 
bonuses 
(bands of 

£5,000) 

(e) 
All 

pension-
related 
benefits 

(bands of 
£2,500) 

(f) 
TOTAL 
(a to e) 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

£000 £ £000 £000 £000 £000 

Nigel Acheson Chief 
Medical Officer 

  105-110 100     55-57.5 160-165 

Darryn Allcorn Chief Nurse   100-105 0     30-32.5 130-135 

Sheena Asthana 
Independent Non 
Executive Director 
Population Health 
Management, Health 
Inequalities and Digital 
Transformation 

1 10-15 0     0 10-15 

Graham Clarke 
Independent Non 
Executive Director Audit 
and Risk 

2 10-15 0     0 10-15 

John Dowell Chief 
Finance Officer 

3 55-60 0     0 55-60 

Anthony Fitzgerald Chief 
Delivery Officer 

4 45-50 1600     12.5-15 65-70 

Sarah Lou Glover 
Ordinary member - Mental 
health 

5 15-20 0     0 15-20 

Thandiwe Hara 
Independent Non 
Executive Director People 
and Culture 

6 10-15 0     0 10-15 

Judith Hargadon 
Independent Non 
Executive Director Primary 
Care 

  10-15 0     0 10-15 

Hisham Khalil 
Independent Non 
Executive Director Quality 
and Performance 

7 10-15 0     0 10-15 

Jane Milligan  
CEO ICS for Devon 

  145-150 100     22.5-25 170-175 

Andrew Millward Chief 
Communications and 
Corporate Affairs Officer 

 105-110 0     30-32.5 135-140 

Frank O'Kelly Ordinary 
member - Primary care 

8 25-30 0     0 25-30 

Kevin Orford Independent 
Non Executive Director 
Finance and 
Remuneration 

9 10-15 100     0 10-15 

Paul Renshaw Director of 
Workforce Strategy 

  95-100 600     20-22.5 115-120 
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Bill Shields Chief Finance 
Officer 

10 75-80 13200     0 85-90 

Simon Tapley Chief 
Transformation and 
Strategic Planning Officer 

  110-115 200     30-32.5 145-150 

Sarah Wollaston  
Chair ICS for Devon 

  45-50 0     0 45-50 

  

Note: 

1 Sheena Asthana began role on 1st July 2022 
2 Graham Clarke began role on 1st July 2022 
3 John Dowell finished role on 4th November 2022 
4 Anthony Fitzgerald began role on 1st November 

2022 
5 Sarah Lou Glover began role on 1st July 2022 
6 Thandiwe Hara began role on 1st July 2022 
7 Hisham Khalil began role on 1st July 2022 
8 Frank O'Kelly began role on 1st July 2022 
9 Kevin Orford began role on 1st July 2022 

10 Bill Shields began role on 7th November 2022 and 
opted not to be covered by the pension 
arrangements during the period. 

 

 

Additional governing body members and attendees not receiving remuneration 
from Devon ICB  

Steve Brown is Director of Public Health - Devon County Council. No payments are 
made for attendance. 
 
Liz Davenport is Chief Executive Officer, Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation 
Trust. No payments are made for attendance. 
Tracey Lee is Chief Executive, Plymouth City Council. No payments are made for 
attendance. 
 
Kate Shields is an invited attendee CEO, NHS Cornwall and Isles of Scilly ICB. No 
payments are made for attendance. 
 
The value of pension benefits accrued during the year is calculated as the real 

increase in pension multiplied by 20, less the contributions made by the individual. 

 

The real increase excludes increases due to inflation or any increase or decrease 

due to a transfer of pension rights. 

 

This value does not represent an amount that will be received by the individual. It is 

a calculation that is intended to convey to the reader of the accounts an estimation of 

the benefit that being a member of the pension scheme could provide. 
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The pension benefit table provides further information on the pension benefits 

accruing to the individual. 

 

Factors determining the variation in the values recorded between individuals include 

but is not limited to: 

 

• A change in role with a resulting change in pay and impact on pension 

benefits 

• A change in the pension scheme itself 

• Changes in the contribution rates 

• Changes in the wider remuneration package of an individual 

 

Pension benefits relate to the total employment with Devon ICB even if the member 

has a split role but are pro rata to time spent in senior management position.  

 

 

Pension benefits – 2022/23 Q2-Q4 (subject to audit) 

Name and Title 

(a) 
Real 

increase 
in 

pension 
at 

pension 
age 

(bands of 
£2,500)               

                                                                                                                                                        

(b) 
Real 

increase 
in 

pension 
lump 

sum at 
pension 

age 
(bands of 
£2,500) 

(c) 
Total 

accrued 
pension 

at 
pension 
age at 31 

March 
2023 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

(d) 
Lump sum 
at pension 
age related 
to accrued 
pension at 
31 March 

2023 
(bands of 
£5,000) 

(e) 
Cash 

Equivalent 
Transfer 

Value at 1 
July 2022 

 
                                 

(f) 
Real 

increase 
in Cash 

Equivalent 
Transfer 

Value                          

(g) 
Cash 

Equivalent 
Transfer 
Value at 
31 March 

2023 
                       

(h) 
Employer's 
contribution 

to 
stakeholder 

pension 
                   

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Nigel Acheson 
Chief Medical 
Officer 

2.5-5 2.5-5 75-80 150-155 1448 65 1568 0 

Darryn Allcorn 
Chief Nurse 

0-2.5 0 50-55 95-100 825 25 882 0 

John Dowell Chief 
Finance Officer 

0 0-2.5 55-60 100-105 1168 0 0 0 

Anthony 
Fitzgerald Chief 
Delivery Officer 

0-2.5 0 40-45 110-115 825 13 880 0 

Jane Milligan 
Designate CEO 
ICS for Devon 

0-2.5 0 70-75 150-155 1358 27 1436 0 

Andrew Millward 
Chief 
Communications 
and Corporate 
Affairs Officer 

0-2.5 0 55-60 125-130 1186 37 1265 0 

Paul Renshaw 
Director of 
Workforce 
Strategy 

0-2.5 0-2.5 15-20 0-5 212 9 240 0 

Simon Tapley 
Chief 
Transformation 
and Strategic 
Planning Officer 

0-2.5 0 60-65 115-120 1005 29 1072 0 
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NHS Business Services Authority (NHS BSA) only provide information as at 31 

March each year. With the ICB commencing 1 July 2022, figures had to be re-

calculated on a pro rata basis to 31 March 2023. This was determined to be the best 

available approach given NHS BSA information was only available for 31 March 

2022 and 31 March 2023.  

 

CETV figures are calculated using the guidance on discount rates for calculating 

unfunded public service pension contribution rates that was extant at 31 March 2023. 

HM Treasury published updated guidance on 27 April 2023; this guidance will be 

used in the calculation of 2023 to 24 CETV figures. 

 

John Dowell's CETV is disclosed as at 1 April 2022 as no value was attainable as at 

30 June 2022.  

 

No CETV will be shown for pensioners or senior managers over NPA. Age 60 in the 

1995 Section, age 65 in the 2008 Section or SPA or age 65, whichever is the later, in 

the 2015 Scheme. 

 

• Lay members do not receive pensionable remuneration; there are no entries  
in respect of pensions for lay members.  
• Only members with an NHS pension have been included.  
• Pension benefits have not been included for those who are currently drawing  
their NHS pension. 
 

Taxable expenses 

No expenses, other than reimbursement of those actually incurred and in support of 
training and development of Senior Managers, have been paid.    
 
Expenses, all of which relate to mileage claims and relocation costs, give rise to a 
tax liability and have been disclosed separately as benefits in kind. The tax liability 
arises as either the rate per mile reimbursed by the ICB exceeds that allowed as a 
tax-free amount by HMRC, or the total annual amount paid by the ICB exceeds that 
allowed as a tax-free amount by HMRC respectively. 
 
Cash equivalent transfer values  

A cash equivalent transfer value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of 
the pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The 
benefits valued are the member’s accrued benefits and any contingent spouse’s (or 
other allowable beneficiary’s) pension payable from the scheme. 

A CETV is a payment made by a pension scheme or arrangement to secure pension 
benefits in another pension scheme or arrangement when the member leaves a 
scheme and chooses to transfer the benefits accrued in their former scheme. The 
pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a 
consequence of their total membership of the pension scheme, not just their service 
in a senior capacity to which disclosure applies. 
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The CETV figures and the other pension details include the value of any pension 
benefits in another scheme or arrangement which the individual has transferred to 
the NHS pension scheme. They also include any additional pension benefit accrued 
to the member as a result of their purchasing additional years of pension service in 
the scheme at their own cost. CETVs are calculated within the guidelines and 
framework prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.  

Real increase in CETV 

This reflects the increase in CETV that is funded by the employer. It does not include 
the increase in accrued pension due to inflation or contributions paid by the 
employee (including the value of any benefits transferred from another scheme or 
arrangement). 

Compensation on early retirement of for loss of office 

There was no early retirement through ill health during July – March 2022/23. 

 

Payments to past directors 

There were no awards made to past senior managers in-year. 

 

Staff Report  

Number of senior managers 

The number of senior managers is set out below in the gender profile and senior 
staff composition table.  

Staff numbers and costs 

The average number of ICB staff is presented below  

 Permanent Other Total 

Average number of full time 

equivalent staff (2022/23)* 

491.49 35.47 526.96 

* Non-Executive Directors and staff on outward secondment have been excluded 
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Staff composition 

As at 31 March 2023, the ICB employed 612 employees in 531.38 full-time 
equivalent posts.  The breakdown of these staff by staff grouping is presented below. 

Staff Grouping Total (FTE) 

Medical and dental 10.2 

Administration and estates 418.44 

Healthcare assistants and other support staff 1.6 

Nursing, midwifery and health visiting staff 61.31 

Scientific, therapeutic and technical staff 39.84 

Social Care Staff 0 

Total 531.38 

 

The gender profile and senior staff composition for the ICB as at 31 March 2023 is 
presented below:  

Category Male (%) Female (%) Total Number 

ICB Board 1 2  44.44% 55.56% 9 

Very Senior Managers 

(Executives) 

76.92% 23.08% 13 

Employees 23.73% 76.27% 590 

1 - Members of the Executive team who sit on the ICB Board have been counted within the Very Senior Managers data 
only. 

2 - Partner members of the Board have been excluded 
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Staff Costs 

The table below sets out the breakdown of employee benefits for the period ending 
31 March 2023. 

Period ended 

31 March 

2023  

 Total    Admin    Programme   

Total  Permanent 

Employees  

Other  

£000  

Total  

£000  

Permanent  

Employees 

£000  

Other  

£000  

Total  

£000  

Permanent  

Employees 

£000  

Other  

£000  £000  £000  

Salaries and 

wages  
23,392 20,424 2,968 11,438 10,769 669 11,954 9,655 2,299 

Social security 

costs  
2,208 2,208 - 1,499 1,499 - 709 709 - 

Employer 

Contributions 

to NHS 

Pension 

scheme  

3,567 3,567 - 2,633 2,633 - 934 934 - 

Other pension 

costs  
9 9 - 8 8 - 1 - - 

Apprenticeship 

Levy  
89 89 - 89 89 - - - - 

Termination 

benefits  
264 264 - 264 264 - - - - 

Gross 

employee 

benefits 

expenditure  

29,529 26,561 2,968 15,931 15,262 669 13,598 11,299 2,299 

Less 

recoveries in 

respect of 

employee 

benefits 

(448) (448) - (403) (403) - (45) (45) - 

Net admin 

employee 

benefits  

29,081 26,113 2,968 15,528 14,859 669 13,553 11,254 2,299 

 

 

Sickness absence data  

The sickness rate for the ICB for July 2022 – March 2023 was 3.39% (calculated as 
FTE calendar days lost divided by total FTE calendar days within the period).  

The ICB has a sickness absence policy in place to ensure that staff are treated fairly 
and equitably, and supported when experiencing and recovering from illness, and 
this policy is applied across the organisation.   
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Sickness absence data for NHS Devon ICB is available at the following link: 

NHS Sickness Absence Rates - NHS Digital 

Staff turnover percentages 

The staff turnover rate (FTE) for the ICB for July 2022 – March 2023 was 11.7% 
(calculated as total FTE leavers divided by average FTE of staff within the period) 

Staff turnover for the ICB is included in the NHS workforce statistics reported on the 
NHS Digital website. A link has been provided below: 

NHS workforce statistics - NHS Digital 

Staff engagement percentages 

The ICB is committed to involving and communicating with staff across a range of 
matters. This is done through a variety of channels such as our weekly staff bulletin 
and fortnightly staff briefings, and engagement groups such as the Staff Partnership 
Forum, the staff Equality, Diversity and Inclusion group and our Health and 
Wellbeing Champions.  

The ICB participates in the NHS National Staff Survey and, in 2022, the staff 
engagement score for NHS Devon was 7.0 (out of 10). In 2021 the engagement 
score was 7.1. Staff survey results by theme in 2022 are provided below. 

 

NHS Devon results are better than the ICB average for every theme and are 
amongst the best in the country for two themes (recognition and reward, and 
learning and development). 

Each year the ICB analyses the staff survey results, shares them with the ICB Board 
and staff, and works with staff and teams to continue to build on the areas where we 
are doing really well and to jointly produce action plans to tackle and address 
emergent themes and issues. 

https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-sickness-absence-rates
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-workforce-statistics
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Staff policies 

NHS Devon is committed to promoting diversity and equality of opportunity and 
providing an inclusive working environment in which all staff feel valued and 
supported.  

The ICB has a range of human resources policies in place to ensure clear, fair and 
transparent practices across the organisation. All policies are approved by the Staff 
Partnership Forum and Executive and available to all staff on our intranet. All HR 
policies have been equality impact assessed to ensure they are not detrimental to 
any staff with protected characteristics, including persons with disabilities. All policies 
are developed with due regard to the Equality Act and the Public Sector Equality 
Duty and are in line with Agenda for Change Terms and Conditions where 
applicable. 

We are an accredited “Disability Confident” employer, which ensures all applicants 
who have declared that they have a disability are guaranteed an interview if they 
meet the essential requirements of the person specification of a role. The recruitment 
policy and process outlines the requirements for recruiting managers to make 
reasonable adjustments for candidates with disabilities and this is reinforced through 
recruitment training courses run for all staff who are required to sit on recruitment 
panels. All staff with a declared disability or who become disabled during their 
employment will have access to appropriate training courses, and career 
development opportunities, and access to promotional opportunities. Reasonable 
adjustments are made to support these people with accessing and benefitting from 
these opportunities.  

Results from the 2022 staff survey indicate that 90% of staff feel that the 
organisation made reasonable adjustments to enable them to carry out their work 
(compared to an average score for ICBs of 79%). 96% of staff stated that they had 
not experienced discrimination from managers or colleagues (compared to an 
average score for ICBs of 93%). 

The ICB has a staff Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Reference Group which 
influences and leads change projects within the staff base to increase knowledge 
and visibility of EDI issues, create a more diverse workforce and improve overall staff 
wellbeing and satisfaction.  

In addition, the ICB continues to monitor and report on compliance with the 
workplace disability equality standard and the workforce race equality standard.  

Trade union facility time reporting requirements  

The trade union (facility time publication requirements) regulations 2017 came into 
force on 1 April 2017. In line with these regulations, all organisations employing more 
than 49 staff, must publish information on facility time, which is agreed time off from 
an individual's job to carry out a trade union role. 

The information provided below is for the relevant period of 1 July 2022 to 31 March 
2023. It captures details of employee’s time spent on duties carried out for a trade 
union or as a union learning representative, for example, attending meetings, 
accompanying an employee to disciplinary or grievance hearing etc. It also applies 
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to, if applicable, training received, and duties carried out under the Health and Safety 
at Work Act 1974.  

It is important to note that the ICB’s formal consultation mechanism is through the 
Staff Partnership Forum. Representatives of the forum are staff members who are 
not required to be part of a trade union or indeed be a representative of a trade union 
and therefore this information does not reflect staff time spent on forum duties. 

Table 1: the number of trade union representatives in our organisation 

Number of employees who were relevant union 

officials during the relevant period 

Full-time equivalent employee 

number 

0 531.38 

 
Table 2: the percentage of time spent on facility time 

Percentage of time Number of employees 

0% 0 

1-50% 0 

51-99% 0 

100% 0 

 
Table 3: the amount spent on facility time 

First column Figures 

Provide the total cost of facility time 0 

Provide the total pay bill £23,612,748 

Provide the percentage of the total pay 

bill spent on facility time, calculated as: 

(total cost of facility time/total pay bill) x 

100 

0 

 
Table 4: the percentage of paid facility time spent on paid trade union activities 

Time spent on paid trade union 

activities as a percentage of total paid 

facility time hours calculated as: (total 

hours spent on paid trade union 

activities by relevant union officials 

during the relevant period/total paid 

facility time hours) x 100 

0 
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Other employee matters 

Health and safety 

The ICB is fully committed to providing an attractive and inclusive working 
environment that values wellbeing and diversity. We recognise our wider legal and 
moral obligation to provide a safe and healthy working environment for employees, 
visitors and members of the public and we manage and comply with our legal duties 
outlined in the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974.  

As with all organisations, we adapted our working arrangements to ensure working 
practices remained COVID-19 secure throughout the year. The majority of staff have 
been able to work from home and the ICB has supported staff with the provision of 
home office equipment where required. Line managers have been responsible for 
broader welfare checks with all staff to ensure the level of support remained 
appropriate. As it became possible and appropriate to return to our offices, we 
worked with the staff partnership forum, governance team, health and safety 
advisors and other stakeholders to support staff in making the return and ensure that 
the office environment was safe, attractive and fit for purpose. Following 
engagement with staff the ICB operates an agile working arrangement in which staff 
can work flexibly between home and any of the offices across Devon. 

Consultation 

The ICB’s consultative body is the Staff Partnership Forum which was established to 
provide a regular and formal means of information, consultation and negotiation 
between managers, elected SPF members and trade union representatives. The 
forum is involved with consulting on key issues affecting the terms and conditions of 
employment and representatives have the opportunity to influence decisions and 
their application. It helps to ensure staff views are taken into account and staff are 
informed of all relevant matters, including the performance or and plans for NHS 
Devon, staff are supported with consultation and employment issues. 

Expenditure on consultancy  

During the period ended 31 March 2023 the ICB spent £1.21 million on consultancy 
costs. 
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Staff Costs 

The table below sets out the breakdown of employee benefits for the period ending 
31 March 2023. 

Period ended 31 

March 2023  

 Total    Admin    Programme   

Total  Permanent 

Employees  

Other  

£000  

Total  

£000  

Permanent  

Employees 

£000  

Other  

£000  

Total  

£000  

Permanent  

Employees 

£000  

Other  

£000  £000  £000  

Salaries and 

wages  
23,396 20,424 2,972 11,442 10,769 673 11,954 9,655 2,299 

Social security 

costs  
2,208 2,208 - 1,499 1,499 - 709 709 - 

Employer 

Contributions 

to NHS 

Pension 

scheme  

3,568 3,568 - 2,633 2,633 - 935 935 - 

Other pension 

costs  
9 9 - 8 8 - 1 1 - 

Apprenticeship 

Levy  
89 89 - 89 89 - - - - 

Termination 

benefits  
264 264 - 264 264 - - - - 

Gross 

employee 

benefits 

expenditure  

29,534 26,562 2,972 15,935 15,262 673 13,599 11,300 2,299 

Less 

recoveries in 

respect of 

employee 

benefits 

(448) (448) - (403) (403) - (45) (45) - 

Net admin 

employee 

benefits  

29,086 26,114 2,972 15,532 14,859 673 13,554 11,255 2,299 
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Off-payroll engagements  

Table 1: Length of all highly paid off-payroll engagements  

For all off-payroll engagements as at 31 March 2023 for more than £245* per day:  

  Number 

Number of existing engagements as of 31 March 2023  2 

Of which, the number that have existed:  

for less than one year at the time of reporting  

for between one and two years at the time of reporting 2 

for between 2 and 3 years at the time of reporting  

for between 3 and 4 years at the time of reporting  

for 4 or more years at the time of reporting  

*The £245 threshold is set to approximate the minimum point of the pay scale for a 
Senior Civil Servant.       

The ICB confirms that all existing off-payroll engagements have at some point been 
subject to a risk-based assessment as to whether assurance is required that the 
individual is paying the right amount of tax and, where necessary, that assurance 
has been sought.  

Table 2: Off-payroll workers engaged at any point during the financial year 

For all off-payroll engagements between 1 July 2022 – 31 March 2023, for  

more than £245(1) per day: 

  Number 

No. of temporary off-payroll workers engaged between 1 July 2022 – 31 

March 2023 
6 

Of which:  

No. not subject to off-payroll legislation(2)  

No. subject to off-payroll legislation and determined as in-scope of IR35(2)  

No. subject to off-payroll legislation and determined as out of scope of 

IR35(2) 
6 

the number of engagements reassessed for compliance or assurance 

purposes during the year 
 

Of which: no. of engagements that saw a change to IR35 status following 

review 
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(1) The £245 threshold is set to approximate the minimum point of the pay scale for a Senior Civil Servant.  

(2) A worker that provides their services through their own limited company or another type of intermediary to the 

client will be subject to off-payroll legislation and the Department must undertake an assessment to determine 

whether that worker is in-scope of Intermediaries legislation (IR35) or out-of-scope for tax purposes. 

Table 3: Off-payroll engagements / senior official engagements 

For any off-payroll engagements of Board members and / or senior officials with 
significant financial responsibility, between 1 July 2022 – 31 March 2023 

Number of off-payroll engagements of board members, and/or 

senior officers with significant financial responsibility, during 

reporting period(1) 

0 

Total no. of individuals on payroll and off-payroll that have 

been deemed “board members, and/or, senior officials with 

significant financial responsibility”, during the reporting period. 

This figure should include both on payroll and off-payroll 

engagements. (2) 

19 

 
1 There should only be a very small number of off-payroll engagements of board 
members and/or senior officials with significant financial responsibility, permitted only 
in exceptional circumstances and for no more than six months 

2 As both on payroll and off-payroll engagements are included in the total figure, no 
entries here should be blank or zero. 

In any cases where individuals are included within the first row of this table the 
ICB/CCG should set out: 

• Details of the exceptional circumstances that led to each of these 
arrangements. 

• Details of the length of time each of these exceptional engagements lasted. 
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Exit packages, including special (non-contractual) payments 

Table 1: Exit Packages  

Exit package 
cost band 
(inc. any 
special 

payment 
element 

Number of 
compulsory 

redundancies 

Cost of 
compulsory 

redundancies 

Number of 
other 

departures 
agreed 

Cost of other 
departures 

agreed 

Total 
number of 

exit 
packages 

Total cost of 
exit packages 

 WHOLE 
NUMBERS 

ONLY £s 

WHOLE 
NUMBERS 

ONLY £s 

WHOLE 
NUMBERS 

ONLY £s 

Less than 
£10,000 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

£10,000 - 
£25,000 

3 £66,497 1 £11,047 4 £77,544 

£25,001 - 
£50,000 

1 £26,000 0 0 1 £26,000 

£50,001 - 
£100,000 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

£100,001 - 
£150,000 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

£150,001 –
£200,000 

1 £160,000 0 0 1 £160,000 

>£200,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTALS 5 £252,497 1 Agrees to A 
below 

6 £263,544 

Redundancy and other departure cost have been paid in accordance with the provisions of the NHS 
terms and conditions handbook, NHS pension Scheme and NHS standard contract where applicable. 
Exit costs in this note are accounted for in full in the year of departure. Where NHS Devon ICB has 
agreed early retirements, the additional costs are met by NHS Devon ICB and not by the NHS 
Pensions Scheme. Ill-health retirement costs are met by the NHS Pensions Scheme and are not 
included in the table.  
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Table 2: Analysis of Other Departures 

 

 Agreements Total Value of agreements 

 Number £000s 

Voluntary redundancies 
including early retirement 
contractual costs 

0  

Mutually agreed resignations 
(MARS) contractual costs 

0  

Early retirements in the 
efficiency of the service 
contractual costs 

0  

Contractual payments in lieu 
of notice 

1 £11,047 
 

Exit payments following 
Employment Tribunals or 
court orders 

0  

Non-contractual payments 
requiring HMT approval** 

0  

TOTAL 1 A – agrees to total in table 1 

As a single exit package can be made up of several components each of which will be counted 
separately in this note, the total number above will not necessarily match the number of individuals. 
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Parliamentary Accountability and Audit Report 

NHS Devon Integrated Care Board is not required to produce a Parliamentary 
Accountability and Audit Report but has opted to include disclosures on remote 
contingent liabilities, losses and special payments, gifts, and fees and charges in this 
Accountability Report at page 14 and 15. An audit certificate and report is also 
included in this Annual Report. 
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Annual accounts 
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Accountable Officer 

6 September 2023 
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Appendices 

Appendix 1: Membership and Attendance 
Record for the Board and its Committees 

NHS Devon ICB Attendances/ 
Possible 
Attendance 

Dr Sarah Wollaston, Chair, NHS Devon 10/ 10 

Graham Clarke, Non-Executive Member for Audit and Risk 09/10 

Kevin Orford, Non-Executive Member for Finance and Remuneration 10/ 10 

Professor Sheena Asthana, Non-Executive Member for Health 
Inequalities and Population Health 

08/ 10 

Professor Hisham Khalil, Non-Executive Member for Quality and Patient 
Experience 

10/ 10 

Judith Hargadon, Non-Executive Member for Primary Care 10/ 10 

Dr Thandiwe Hara, Non-Executive Member for Citizen and Community 
Involvement 

09/ 10 

Jane Milligan, Chief Executive Officer, NHS Devon 10/ 10 

Bill Shields, Chief Finance Officer, NHS Devon (from November 22) 04/ 05 

John Dowell, Chief Finance Officer, NHS Devon (to end of October 22) 04/ 05 

Nigel Acheson, Chief Medical Officer, NHS Devon 06/ 10 

Darryn Allcorn, Chief Nursing Officer, NHS Devon 08/ 10 

Andrew Millward, Chief Communications and Corporate Affairs Officer, 
NHS Devon 

10/ 10 

Anthony Fitzgerald, Chief Delivery Officer, NHS Devon (from November 
22) 

03/ 04 

Paul Renshaw, Director of Strategic Workforce, NHS Devon 07/ 10 

Simon Tapley, Chief Transformation and Strategic Planning Officer, 
NHS Devon 

04/ 10 

Tracey Lee, Partner Member for Local Authorities 09/ 10 

Steve Brown, Partner Member for Local Authorities 08/ 10 

Liz Davenport, Partner Member for NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts 09/ 10 

Sarah Lou Glover, Partner Member for Mental Health, Learning 
Disabilities and Neurodiversity 

08/ 10 

Frank O’Kelly, Partner Member for Primary Care 10/ 10 
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Highlights of work over the reporting period: 

At its first meeting on 1 July 2022 the NHS Devon Board appointments of the Chair, 
Statutory Board roles and Chairs of ICB Board Committees and Integrated Care 
Partnership were confirmed as well as approval of key ICB policies.  
 
The Board has covered a wide range of issues during the reporting period particular 
focus has been on the development of the Operating Model, Financial and 
performance recovery plans and the Board Assurance Framework and Risk 
Management Framework.  
 
The Board approved the Integrated Care Strategy, Digital Strategy and the 
delegation of Podiatry, Ophthalmic and Dentistry services from NHS England.  
 
The Board has also valued hearing and learning from the lived experience of 
patients, carers and frontline staff and is grateful to Healthwatch for helping to put 
the board in touch with individuals who have shared their experiences with them in 
areas relating to the Board’s agenda. 
 
Regular reviews of quality, performance and finance are undertaken at each meeting 
as is assurance and escalation from the assurance committees.  
 

Audit and Risk Committee 

Audit and Risk Committee Attendances/ 
Possible 
Attendance 

Graham Clarke, Non-Executive Member for Audit and Risk (Committee 
Chair) 

06/07 

Kevin Orford, Non-Executive Member for Finance and Remuneration 07/07 

Professor Sheena Asthana, Non-Executive Member for Health Inequalities 
and Population Health 

06/07 

Professor Hisham Khalil, Non-Executive Member for Quality and Patient 
Experience 

07/07 

Bill Shields, Chief Finance Officer, NHS Devon (from November 22) 03/04 

John Dowell, Chief Finance Officer, NHS Devon (to end of October 22) 03/03 

Darryn Allcorn, Chief Nursing Officer, NHS Devon 03/07 

Andrew Millward, Chief Communications and Corporate Affairs Officer, 
NHS Devon 

04/07 

 
Sarah Wollaston, NHS Devon Chair attended two meetings as a guest as part of 
establishment of the ICB.  
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Highlights of work over the reporting period: 

The Audit and Risk Committee has covered a wide range of issues during the 
reporting period, with particular focus on the development of the ICB’s Board 
Assurance Framework and Risk Management Framework. 
 
Regular updates have been received from Audit South West around the progress of 
the Internal Audit programme and Counter Fraud Programme with consideration 
being given to the recommendations resulting from the programmes of work. 
 
The Committee has considered the Information Governance policies and procedures 
being assured as to compliance and progress against the DPST and has also 
reviewed the risks associated with the delegation of Pharmacy, Ophthalmology and 
Dentistry from NHS England to the ICB, escalating its concerns to the ICB Board. 
 
The challenges in securing external auditors for the ICB has been a regular agenda 
item. 
 
The Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee has also been working with Chairs from 
across the system to establish an Audit Chairs’ Forum.  
 

Remuneration and Internal ICB Workforce Committee 

 

Remuneration and Internal ICB Workforce Committee Attendances/ 
Possible 
Attendance 

Dr Sarah Wollaston, Chair, NHS Devon 02/03 

Kevin Orford, Non-Executive Member for Finance and Remuneration 

(Committee chair) 

03/03 

Professor Sheena Asthana, Non-Executive Member for Health 
Inequalities and Population Health 

01/03 

Judith Hargadon, Non-Executive Member for Primary Care 03/03 

Dr Thandiwe Hara, Non-Executive Members for Citizen and 
Community Involvement 

02/03 

 
Highlights of work over the reporting period: 

Agreed the remuneration of the Chair Executive Officer of the ICB and of its 
Executive Directors and Non-Executive Members. 
 
The Committee received a briefing on the “Freedom to Speak Up” work being 
undertaken at the ICB and the staff survey results.  
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Primary Care Transformation Commissioning Committee  

 

Primary Care Transformation Commissioning Committee  Attendances/ 
Possible 
Attendance 

Judith Hargadon, Non-Executive Member for Primary Care (Committee 
chair) 

06/07 

Dr Thandiwe Hara, Non-Executive Member for Citizen and Community 
Involvement 

07/07 

Darryn Allcorn, Chief Nursing Officer, NHS Devon 01/07 (deputy in 
attendance for 
07/07) 

Nigel Acheson, Chief Medical Officer, NHS Devon 05/07 

Frank O’Kelly, Partner Member for Primary Care 06/07 

Bill Shields, Chief Finance Officer, NHS Devon (from November 22) 0/03 (deputy in 
attendance)  

John Dowell, Chief Finance Officer, NHS Devon (to end of October 22) 0/03 (deputy in 
attendance) 

 
Highlights of work over the reporting period: 

The main focus of the Committee has been preparing for the delegation of Pharmacy, 
Ophthalmology and Dentistry services from NHS England as of 1 April 2023. 
 
The Committee has overseen the development of the NHS Devon Primary Care 
Strategy and Community First Strategy. 
 
Regular focus has been given to population health management, support for GP 

practices, contractual and resilience matters and resolving issues around individual 

providers within the system. 

People and Culture Committee 

 

People and Culture Committee Attendances/ 
Possible 
Attendance 

Judith Hargadon, Independent Non-Executive Member 04/05 

Dr Thandiwe Hara, Non-Executive Member for Citizen and Community 
Involvement (Committee chair) 

05/05 

Jane Milligan, Chief Executive Officer, NHS Devon 04/05 

Paul Renshaw, Director of Strategic Workforce, NHS Devon 05/05 

Tracey Lee, Partner Member for Local Authorities 04/05 
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Andrew Millward, Chief Communications and Corporate Affairs Officer, 
NHS Devon 

01/05 

Michelle Thomas, Partner Member for Provider Organisation 01/05 

 
Highlights of work over the reporting period: 

The main focus has been the development of the ICS Workforce Strategy. 
During the year the Committee has received briefings on the work of the Devon 
Learning Academy, the Health and Social Skills Accelerator Programme and hear 
from Chief Medical Officer regarding the ICB’s research, innovation, and 
improvement work.  
 
Specific issues of focus included the international recruitment of nurses and social 
care staff, the Devon Wellbeing Hub, agency spend, staff turnover and workforce 
productivity. 
 

Quality and Performance Committee 

 

Quality and Performance Committee Attendances/ 
Possible 
Attendance 

Kevin Orford, Non-Executive Member for Finance and Remuneration 06/07 

Professor Hisham Khalil, Non-Executive Member for Quality and 
Patient Experience (Committee chair|) 

07/07 

Judith Hargadon, Non-Executive Member for Primary Care 06/07 

Nigel Acheson, Chief Medical Officer, NHS Devon 04/07 

Darryn Allcorn, Chief Nursing Officer, NHS Devon 07/07 

 
Highlights of work over the reporting period: 

The Committee has covered a wide range of issues during the reporting period with 
risk management, incident reporting thematic analysis and patient safety featuring on 
each agenda. 
 
Reviews have been undertaken in respect of elective care patients, 111 services, 
ambulance handovers, ICS CQUIN schemes, with the implications of reports such as 
the Maternity and Neonatal services in East Kent and the Peninsula Trauma Network 
Peer Review. 
 
Work has begun to prepare for the implementation of the revisions to the National 
Patient Safety Framework which will have an impact on the way in which incidents 
are managed across the NHS. 
 

Finance Committee 

 



 

 Page 133 
  

Finance Committee Attendances/ 
Possible 
Attendance 

Graham Clarke, Non-Executive Member for Audit and Risk 08/08 

Kevin Orford, Non-Executive Member for Finance and Remuneration 

(Committee chair) 

08/08 

Professor Sheena Asthana, Non-Executive Member for Health 
Inequalities and Population Health 

07/08 

John Dowell, Chief Finance Officer, NHS Devon (to end of October 22) 03/04 

Nigel Acheson, Chief Medical Officer, NHS Devon 05/08 

Simon Tapley, Chief Transformation and Strategic Planning Officer, 
NHS Devon 

03/08 

Bill Shields, Chief Finance Officer, NHS Devon (from November 22) 04/04 

Anthony Fitzgerald, Chief Delivery Officer, NHS Devon (from 
November 22) 

01/04 

 
Highlights of work over the reporting period: 

The financial position of the ICB and ICS has driven the work of the Finance 
Committee during this period with monthly consideration being given to the SOF 4 
exit criteria, financial risks and equities reporting.   
 
The Committee also considered the full business case for the Plymouth Cavell 
Centre and made its recommendation for approval to the ICB Board.  It also 
considered the contract recommendation for the Home Oxygen Service. 
Procurement updates were considered and an update to the Procurement Policy 
approved. 
 
Other areas of focus have included the estates portfolio, Patient Transport Service 
procurement, the system’s investment process and approach to financial risk 
management. 
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Independent auditor’s report 
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